THE UNIVERSITY OF CALGARY

Exponentially Small Splittings and Solitary Water Waves

by

Kelly Charles Candy

A THESIS

SUBMITTED TO THE FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF MASTER OF SCIENCE

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS

CALGARY, ALBERTA

January, 1994

© Kelly Charles Candy 1994



National Library of Canada

Acquisitions and Bibliographic Services Branch

395 Wellington Street Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0N4 Bibliothèque nationale du Canada

Direction des acquisitions et des services bibliographiques

395, rue Wellington Ottawa (Ontario) K1A 0N4

Your file Votre référence

Our lile Notre référence

THE AUTHOR HAS GRANTED AN IRREVOCABLE NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENCE ALLOWING THE NATIONAL LIBRARY OF CANADA TO REPRODUCE, LOAN, DISTRIBUTE OR SELL COPIES OF HIS/HER THESIS BY ANY MEANS AND IN ANY FORM OR FORMAT, MAKING THIS THESIS AVAILABLE TO INTERESTED PERSONS. L'AUTEUR A ACCORDE UNE LICENCE IRREVOCABLE ET NON EXCLUSIVE PERMETTANT A LA BIBLIOTHEQUE NATIONALE DU CANADA DE REPRODUIRE, PRETER, DISTRIBUER OU VENDRE DES COPIES DE SA THESE DE QUELQUE MANIERE ET SOUS QUELQUE FORME QUE CE SOIT POUR METTRE DES EXEMPLAIRES DE CETTE THESE A LA DISPOSITION DES PERSONNE INTERESSEES.

THE AUTHOR RETAINS OWNERSHIP OF THE COPYRIGHT IN HIS/HER THESIS. NEITHER THE THESIS NOR SUBSTANTIAL EXTRACTS FROM IT MAY BE PRINTED OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED WITHOUT HIS/HER PERMISSION.

Canadä

L'AUTEUR CONSERVE LA PROPRIETE DU DROIT D'AUTEUR QUI PROTEGE SA THESE. NI LA THESE NI DES EXTRAITS SUBSTANTIELS DE CELLE-CI NE DOIVENT ETRE IMPRIMES OU AUTREMENT REPRODUITS SANS SON AUTORISATION.

ISBN 0-315-99322-7

Candy, Kelly Charles

Name _____ Exponentially Small Splittings and Solitary Water Waves Dissertation Abstracts International is arranged by broad, general subject categories. Please select the one subject which most nearly describes the content of your dissertation. Enter the corresponding four-digit code in the spaces provided.

Mathematics

SUBJECT TERM

Subject Categories

THE HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL SCIENCES

COMMUNICATIONS AND THE ARTS

Architecture	.0729
Art History	0377
Cinema	.0900
Dance	.0378
Fine Arts	.0357
Information Science	.0723
Journalism	.0391
Library Science	.0399
Mass Communications	.0708
Music	.0413
Speech Communication	0459
Theater	0465

EDUCATION

General	.0515
Administration	0514
Adult and Continuina	0516
Agricultural	0517
Art	0273
Bilipqual and Multicultural	0282
Business	0688
Community College	0275
Curriculum and Instruction	0727
Farly Childhood	0518
Flementary	0524
Finance	0277
Guidance and Counseling	0519
Health	0680
Higher	0745
History of	0520
Home Economics	0278
Industrial	0521
Language and Literature	0270
Mathematics	0280
Municipality	0522
Philosophy of	10000
Physical	0523
C LINEU A LI	

Psychology Sciences 0714 0533 Secondary Social Sciences 0534 Sociology of Special 0340 0529 Vocational 0747

LANGUAGE, LITERATURE AND LINGUISTICS

Language	
General	.0679
Ancient	.0289
Linguistics	0290
Modern	0291
literature	
General	0401
Classical	0201
Clussicul	0274
Comparative	.0295
Medieval	.0297
Modern	.0298
Atrican	.0316
American	.0591
Asian	.0305
Canadian (English)	.0352
Canadian (French)	0355
English	0593
Garmonic	0311
Latin Amoriaan	0212
Middle Festere	0216
	.0315
Komance	.0313
Slavic and East European	.0314

PHILOSOPHY, RELIGION AND

THEOLOGY	
Philosophy	0422
Religion	
General	0318
Biblical Studies	0321
Clergy	0319
Philosophy of	0320
Theology	0322
meelogy	0407
SOCIAL SCIENCES	
American Studies	0323
Anthropology	
Archaeology	0324
Cultural	0326
Business Administration	0327
General	0310
Accounting	0272
Banking	0770
Management	0454
Marketing	0338
Canadian Studies	0385
Economics	
General	0501
Agricultural	0503
Finance	0508
History	0509
Labor	0510
Theory	0511
Folklore	0358
Geography	0366
Gerontology	0351
riistory	0570
General	03/8

Angiant	05	70
Ancient	05	<u>/</u>
Medieval	Ő5	ŘĬ
Modern	05	82
Black	03	28
Atrican	03	31
Asia, Australia and Oceania	03	32
Canadian	03	34
Furopean	03	35
Latin American	03	žž
Middle Fastern	00	22
Inited States	23	37
	03	2/
History of Science	02	82
Law	03	98
Political Science		
General	06	15
International Law and		
Relations	06	16
Public Administration	ÕĂ	iž
Recreation	ňĕ	iй
Social Work	22	50
Social work	04	52
Sociology	~~	~ /
General	00	20
Criminology and Penology	06	27
Demography	09	38
Ethnic and Racial Studies	06	31
Individual and Family		
Studies	06	28
Industrial and Labor		
Relations	06	20
Public and Social Wolfaro	22	ŝή
Secolal Structure and	00	30
Social Siruciure and	07	~~
_ Development	0/0	ųυ
Iheory and Methods	03	44
Iransportation	07	09
Urban and Regional Planning	09	99
Women's Studies	04	53

)405

SUBJECT CODE

Speech Pathology Toxicology Home Economics 0460 0386

PHYSICAL SCIENCES

Pure Sciences

Chemistry	
Genéral	.0485
Aaricultural	.0749
Analytical	.0486
Biochemistry	.0487
Inorganic	.0488
Nuclear	.0738
Oraanic	.0490
Pharmaceutical	.0491
Physical	.0494
Polymer	.0495
Radiation	.0754
Mathematics	.0405
• Physics	
General	.0605
Acoustics	.0986
Astronomy and	
Astrophysics	.0606
Atmospheric Science	.0608
Atomic	.0748
Electronics and Electricity	.0607
Elementary Particles and	
High Energy	.0798
Fluid and Plasma	.0759
Molecular	.0609
Nuclear	.0610
Optics	.0752
Radiation	.0756
Solid State	.0611
Statistics	.0463
Applied Sciences	
Applied Mechanics	0244
Computer Science	0040
Composer science	.0784

Ingineering	
General	0537
Aerospace	.0538
Aaricultural	.0539
Automotive	.0540
Biomedical	.0541
Chemical	0542
Civil	054
Electronics and Electrical	0544
Heat and Thermodynamics	0348
Hydraulic	0544
Industria	0.546
Marine	0547
Materials Science	0794
Mechanical	0548
Metalluray	074
Mining	0551
Nuclear	0552
Packaging	0549
Petroleum	0764
Sanitary and Municipal	0552
System Science	0790
Geotechnology	0428
Operations Research	0704
Plastice Technology	0704
Taxtila Tachnology	

PSYCHOLOGY

General	
Behavioral	.:0384
Clinical	
Developmental	
Experimental	
Industrial	
Personality	
Physiologícal	
Psýchobiology	0349
Psychometrics	
Sócial	

THE SCIENCES AND ENGINEERING

0473

Geodesv

BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES Agriculture

General	.04/3
Agronomy	.0285
Animal Culture and	
Nutrition	.0475
Animal Pathology	0476
Food Science and	, 047 0
Taska ala ma	0250
rechnology	0359
Forestry and wildlife	.04/8
Plant Culture	.04/9
Plant Pathology	.0480
Plant Physiology	.0817
Range Management	.0777
Wood Technology	.0746
Biology	
General	0306
Anatomy	0287
Riostatistics	0200
Diosionistics	0300
Boing	,0307
	.03/9
Ecology	.0329
Entomology	0353
Genetics	.0369
Limnology	.0793
Microbiology	.0410
Molecular	.0307
Neuroscience	0317
Oceanoaraphy	0416
Physiology	0433
Dadiation	0400
Vatariaga Salanga	0770
velerinary Science	.0//0
200iogy	.0472
Biophysics	070/
General	.0/86
Medical	.0/60
EARTH SCIENCES	

Biogeochemistry	0425
Geochemistry	0996

 Geodesy
 0370

 Geology
 0372

 Geophysics
 0373

 Hydrology
 0388

 Mineralogy
 0411

 Paleobotany
 0345

 Paleocology
 0426

 Paleontology
 0418

 Paleozology
 0488

 Paleozology
 0426

 Paleozology
 0488

 Poleozology
 0488

 Poleozology
 0488

 Polynology
 0426

 Polynology
 0426

 Polynology
 0427

 Physical Geography
 0368

 Physical Oceanography
 0415

0370

HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL

DCIENCES	
Environmental Sciences	0768
General	0566
Dentistry	0567
Education Hospital Management	0350
Human Development	0758
Medicine and Surgery	0564
Nursing	0569
Nutrition Obstetrics and Gynecology	0570 0380
Therapy	0354
Pathology	0571
Pharmacology Pharmacy	0419 0572
Physical Therapy Public Health	0382
Radiology Recreation	0574

Nom

Dissertation Abstracts International est organisé en catégories de sujets. Veuillez s.v.p. choisir le sujet qui décrit le mieux votre thèse et inscrivez le code numérique approprié dans l'espace réservé ci-dessous.

SUJET

Catégories par sujets

HUMANITÉS ET SCIENCES SOCIALES

CO.	MMI	UNIC/	TIONS	ET LES	ARTS

Architecture	0729
Beaux-arts	0357
Bibliothéconomie	0399
Cinéma	0900
Communication verbale	0459
Communications	0708
Danse	0378
Histoire de l'art	0377
lournalisme	0391
Musique	0413
Sciences de l'information	0723
Théôtre	0465

ÉDUCATION

Généralités	
Administration	0514
Art	0273
Collèges communautaires	0275
Commerce	068
Économie domestique	027
Éducation permanente	0516
Éducation préscolaire	.0518
Éducation sanitaire	.0680
Enseignement garicole	0517
Enseignement bilingue et	
multiculturel	028
Enseignement industrie	052
Enseignement primaire	052
Enseignement professionnel	074
Enseignement religieux	052
Enseignement secondaire	053
Enseignement spécial	052
Enseignement supérieur	074
Evaluation	028
Finances	027
Formation dos opsoignants	053
Visteire de l'éducation	0520
	0270
Langues et interature	

SCIENCES ET INGÉNIERIE Géologie 0372 Géophysique 0373 Hydrologie 0388 Minéralogie 0411 Océanographie physique 0415 Paléobotanique 0345 Paléocologie 0426 Paléocologie 0426

SCIENCES BIOLOGIQUES

Agriculture

Généralités	.0473
Aaronomie,	.0285
Alimentation et technologie	
alimentaire	. 0359
Culture	0479
Elevage et alimentation	0475
Exploitation des péturages	.0777
Pathologie animale	.0476
Pathologie végétale	.0480
Physiologie végétale	.081/
Sylviculture et taune	.04/8
Technologie du bois	.0/40
Biologie	000/
Generalites	.0300
Anatomie	.028/
Biologie (Statistiques)	.0300
Biologie moleculaire	030/
Collulo	0307
Écologio	0329
Entomologie	035
Génétique	0369
Limpologie	0793
Microbiologie	.0410
Neurologie	.0317
Océanographie	0416
Physiologie	0433
Radiation	0821
Science vétérinaire	0778
Zoologie	0472
Biophysique	
Généralités	0/86
Medicale	
SCIENCES DE LA TERRE	
Biogéochimie	0425

Biogéochimie	0425
Géochimie	0996
Géodésie	0370
Géographie physique	0368

Lecture	.0535
Mathématiques	.0280
Musique	.0522
Orientation et consultation	.0519
Philosophie de l'éducation	0998
Physique	0523
Prógrammes d'études et	
enseignement	.0727
Psychologie	0525
Sciences	0714
Sciences sociales	0534
Sociologie de l'éducation	0340
Technologie	0710
TELEVISION CONTRACTOR TO TAKE TO TAKE TAKE TAKE TAKE TAKE TAKE TAKE TAKE	

LANGUE, LITTÉRATURE ET LINGUISTIQUE La

Lit

ngues	
Généralités	0679
Anciennes	0285
Linguistique	0290
Modernes	029
térature	
Généralités	0401
Anciennes	0294
Comparée	0295
Mediévale	0297
Moderne	0298
Africaine	0316
Américaine	0591
Anglaise	0.593
Asigtique	030
Canadienne (Analaise)	035
Canadianna (Francaise)	035
Gormanique	0311
	031
Mayon anientale	0317
Moyen-orieniale	031
Komane	
Slave et est-européenne	0314

 L'ENVIRONNEMENT

 Économie domestique
 0386

 Sciences de l'environnement
 0768

 Sciences de la santé
 0566

 Administration des hipitaux
 0769

 Alimentation et nutrition
 0570

 Audiologie
 0300

 Chimiothérapie
 0992

 Dentisterie
 0567

 Développement humain
 0758

 Enseignement
 0350

 Immunologie
 0982

 Loisirs
 0575

 Médecine du travail et
 thérapie

 thérapie
 0354

Toxicologie0383

SCIENCES DE LA SANTÉ ET DE

L'ENVIRONNEMENT

PHILOSOPHIE, RELIGION ET

Philosophie	0422
Religion	0210
Cleraé	0319
Études bibliques	0321
Philosophie de la religions	0320
Théologie	0469

SCIENCES SOCIALES

NIENCEJ JOCIALEJ
Anthropologie
Archéologie
Culturelle 0326
Physique 0327
Droit 0398
conomio
Généralitér 0501
Commonae Afferinae 0505
Commerce-Andres
Economie agricole
Economie du travail
Finances
Histoire
Théorie
tudes américaines0323
tudes canadiennes
tudes féministes
olklore0358
Géographie 0366
Sérontologie 0351
Sertion des affaires
Généralités 0310
Administration 0454
Administration
Banques
Marketing0338
listoire
Histoire générale

Ancienne	0579
Médiévalo	0581
Medievale	0501
Moderne	0002
Histoire des noirs	0328
Africaine	0331
Çanadienne	0334
Etats-Unis	.0337
Européenne	.0335
Moven-orientale	0333
Latino-américaine	0336
Asie, Australie et Océanie	0332
Histoire des sciences	0585
loisire	0814
Planification urbains at	0014
	0000
regionale	0777
Science politique	0/15
Generalites	0013
Administration publique	0617
Droit et relations	
internationales	0616
Sociologie	
Généralités	0626
Aide et bien-àtre social	.0630
 Criminologie et 	
établissements	
pénitentigires	0627
Démographie	0938
Études de l'individu et	
de la famille	0628
Fudas das relations	.0020
intersthe investor	
interentinques er	0421
des relations raciales	0031
Structure et developpement	0700
social	.0/00
Théorie et méthodes	0344
Travail et relations	
industrielles	0629
Transports	0709
Travail social	0452

CODE DE SUJET

SCIENCES PHYSIQUES

ł

Sciences Pures Chimie Genéralités0485 Genéralités 0485 Biochimie 487 Chimie agricole 0749 Chimie analytique 0486 Chimie minérale 0488 Chimie nucléaire 04738 Chimie organique 0490 Chimie pharmaceutique 0491 Physique 0494 PolymCres 0495 Radiation 0754 Mathématiques0405 Physique Généralités Physique 0605 Généralités 0986 Astronomie et 0986 astrophysique 0605 Electronique et électricité 0607 Fluides et plasma 0759 Météorologie 0608 Optique 0752 Particules (Physique 0752 Particules (Physique 0758 Nétéorologie 0608 Potique 0778 Physique atomique 0748 Physique moléculaire 0611 Physique moléculaire 0610 Radiation 0756 Statistiques 0463 0605 Généralités0537

Bioméo	dicale		.054	41
Chaley	r et ther			
, mod	ynamique		,034	48
Condit	ionnemen	t		
(Emb	oallage)		.054	19
Génie	aérospati	al	.053	38
Génie	chimique		.054	42
Génie	civil		.054	43
Génie	électronia	ue et		
élect	rique		.054	44
Génie	industriel		054	46
Génie	mécaniqu	A	054	18
Génie	nucléaire	•	05	52
Ingénie	erie des si	/stämes	079	έĈ
Mécan	ique navo	le	05	47
Métalli	uraie		074	47
Scienc	e des mat	ériaux	079	şΖ
Techni	que du né	trole	07	5.4
Techni	que au pe	ro	05	śì
Techni	ques sanit	niros ot		
mun	icinales		054	52
Techno	logie byd	raulique	05	í-
Mácanique	a appliqué	10011q00	. 03.	iž
Géotechno	Jogie		04	žě
Matières n	lastiques			
/Mulleles p	hologie		079	24
Pacharcha	opération	nalla	070	ŚΖ
Toxtilor of	tissus (Tec	hnologial	070	57
I CAILES EL	13303 (160	mologiet		
PSYCHOL	OGIF			
Généralité			062	21

PSYCHOLOGIE	
Généralités	0621
Personnalité	0625
Psychobiologie	0349
Psychologie clinique	0622
Psychologie du comportement	0384
Psychologie du développement	0620
Psychologie expérimentale	0623
Psychologie industrielle	0624
Psychologie physiologique	0989
Psýchologie sociale	0451
Psychométrie	0632

UNIVERSITY OF GALGARY FAGULET OF

GELADUATE STUDIES

The undersigned cartify that they have read, and recommend to the Freelits of Graduite Studies for Veterlander, a there estimate "Exponentially Small Splittings and Solitary Water Manual" monitors by Kelly Candy in partial fulfillment of the continuous for the Jackser Marint of Science.

> Separatory I., Sater Reperiment of Kathematics and Statistics

Department of Mathematics and Statistics

lan Mart

0. Robin Department of Physics

Abstract

In studying dynamical systems, mathematicians are often faced with what seems to be impossible integrations. Recently these problems have been attributed to the phenomenon of "Exponentially Small Splittings" of the orbits in the phase space. It seems that two problems in particular are studied to try and understand this phenomenon, that of solitary water waves and that of the rapidly forced pendulum. One such example of this occurrence with solitary water waves concerns the model equation

$$\varepsilon^{2}\frac{d^{4}y}{dx^{4}} + \frac{d^{2}y}{dx^{2}} - y + y^{2} = 0$$

The analysis will involve the transformation

$$z(y) = \left(\frac{dy}{dx}\right)^2$$

in order to get a second order differential equation. Asymptotic expansions of z(y) are then studied for ε small and we will try to get a hold of the "exponentially small splitting".

Acknowledgements

In the realization of the final draft of this thesis being written, I was suddenly aware of the number of people who had some contribution to its development, I hope to acknowledge, here as many of these people as possible without writing another manuscript of equal size. First and foremost I would like to thank my advisor Dr. Larry Bates, whose encouragement and infinite patience allowed me to complete the work at my own pace and not to the settings of a time clock. I would also like to thank Dr. J. Sniatycki and Dr. D. Hobill for agreeing to wade their way through my work for the purpose of my defense.

When I first started my post secondary career, I was attending the University of Lethbridge and it is here that I must put the credit for any interest sparked in me for mathematics. I would like to thank the University of Lethbridge Math Department for showing me that there is a little more to math then adding and subtracting. I would also like to thank my friend Dr. Lincoln Chew of the University of Lethbridge Psychology department for his guidance and words of wisdom throughout the search for my degree.

While at the University of Calgary, I met many people whose interests were very similar to mine, that is we all enjoyed doing our studying in the Den. I am sure the only reason that I did not go insane during the course of my studies was due to Peter Gibson, Halsey Boyd, Indy Lagu, Jim Stallard, Bonaventure Anthonio, Titus Misi, Len Bos, Chris Raham, Karen Slowinsky, Tom Morrison, and many others that are too numerous to mention. I raise a mug and give a toast to all of these.

Finally, I feel that much of my ambition and accomplishments can be attributed to

my closest family and friends. I could not have gone as far as I have without the support and guidance of my dad Garry Candy and my mom Bev Candy. I also would like to thank my sisters Kerry and Dawn for making me leave the world of math and reenter the world of people. My brothers Jay and James were instrumental in helping me to relax while I was away from school. I really enjoyed the time we were able to spend in consultation over a few beer. I would like to thank my friends for all of their encouragement, of these I must make special mention of a few: Jeff Hill, Reece Dorigatti, Brian Veres, Mark Lenz, Blair Wilk, Bryan and Sandy Szumlas, Pat Spenrath, and last but definitely not least Treva Readman whose support for my scholastic achievement was never lacking.

Table of Contents

A	oprov	val Page	ii
Ał	ostra	ct	iii
Ac	knov	vledgements	iv
Ta	ble o	of Contents	vi
1	Intr	oduction	1
	1.1	A Brief Introduction to Dynamical Systems.	2
	1.2	History of Exponentially Small Splittings	3
	1.3	History of the Problem of Solitary Water Waves	7
2	\mathbf{The}	Integral Part of the Thesis.	11
	2.1	An Equation for the Integral and Trajectories	11
	2.2	Formal Approximation by Straightforward Iteration	13
	2.3	Formal Approximation by Power Series	19
3	Wha	at Does it All Mean?	24
	3.1	The Solution for $z(y)$ and the Result $\ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots$	24
	3.2	Splitting of the Homoclinic Orbit	27
4	The	Proof of the Result	34
	4.1	The General Idea	34
	4.2	Excerpt on "exact WKB functions"	37
	4.3	Transformation to Integral Equation	42
		4.3.1 The problem for ψ	48
		4.3.2 The problem for ψ'	53
	4.4	The Contraction Mapping	58
Bi	bliog	raphy	62
\mathbf{A}	Con	putation of Some Integrals	64

List of Figures

.

.

1.1	Homoclinic orbit before perturbation	10
1.2	Homoclinic orbit after the perturbation term is introduced	10

•

Chapter 1

Introduction

As we go about our everyday lives, we are constantly interacting with different systems; we depend upon the interaction of gears to be able to tell time, we depend upon the interaction of air molecules and other particles in the air so that the weather is bearable. The study of these systems has been going on since time began. In mankind's unquenchable thirst for knowledge, we have described as many of our "man-made" systems as we could. We are now moving into the realm of nature, and we are finding that nature's laws do not conform so easily to our own. The result is an area of study where we intentionally focus on the troublesome areas rather than ignoring them. In this thesis, I will try to explore one such area, that of exponentially small splittings of orbits. I will start with a brief overview of dynamical systems, then a quick annotated bibliography of some papers presented on exponentially small splittings. The main body of the thesis deals with a concrete example of exponentially small splittings in a homoclinic orbit of the equation for a solitary water wave. With this in mind, I will give an overview of some papers dealing with solitary water waves and then an in depth analysis of a paper by Wiktor Eckhaus, "Singular Perturbations of Homoclinic Orbits in \mathbb{R}^{4} " [5].

1.1 A Brief Introduction to Dynamical Systems.

A dynamical system is one whose state changes with time. In applications, we can deal with time continuously or discreetly. When time is continuous, the dynamics of the system are usually described by a differential equation whose solution or solutions are values in the phase space. Usually the phase space is Euclidean space or a subset thereof, but it can also be a non-Euclidean structure. We say the solution or solutions of the system of differential equations is the flow of the system, and specific solutions (i.e. solutions starting with particular initial conditions and then tracked as time changes), are called the orbits. We usually denote the flow by $\varphi_t: M \to M$ where M is the manifold or structure where the system is taking place. If $\varphi_t(x) = x^*$ for all $t \in \mathbf{R}$, then we say x^* is a fixed point of the flow. The sets of points $\{x \in M \mid \varphi_t(x) \to x^* \text{ as } t \to \infty(-\infty)\}$ are called the stable and unstable manifolds respectively. If a point lies in both the stable and the unstable manifold, then this point is referred to as a homoclinic point. If only one orbit contains both the unstable and stable manifold, then this orbit is referred to as a homoclinic orbit. Sometimes the unstable and stable manifolds intersect transversally and when this happens they intersect an infinite number of times. The result is a homoclinic tangle. The splitting between the unstable and stable manifolds of a homoclinic orbit is called exponentially small splitting due the fact that the splitting distance is exponentially small. This distance that we refer to is the actual measured distance between the stable manifold and the unstable manifold. When determining the splitting distance, it becomes interesting to also measure the splitting angle, this is the tangental angle at the one point where the stable and unstable manifolds intersect. Of course due

to the fact that the stable and unstable manifolds will intersect an infinite number of times, it becomes necessary to look at the splitting angle and distance at one intersection point. One way to try and compute these measurements is called the Melnikov Function. Here a section of the unperturbed system is analyzed. In the perturbed system, the distance is measured along the Poincaré map between the stable and unstable manifolds. The distance changes for varying points and so an average is taken over the integral. However, this approach often fails due to the non-analyticity of the functions involved. In the case studied in this thesis, this integral is impossible to compute. So to try and work with these types of systems we use approximations to the functions involved. These approximations are said to be asymptotic if we have a series of increasingly accurate approximations to a function in a particular limit. An asymptotic limit does not necessarily have to converge and so can be used on a non analytic function. An important feature of an asymptotic series like $\sum \phi_n \varepsilon^n$ is that every term in the series is algebraic in ε . Transcendentally small terms like $\exp\left\{-\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2}\right\}$ are smaller than every term in the series as $\varepsilon \to 0$ and are not captured by it. These small terms are said to lie beyond all orders of the asymptotic expansion. In most applications, these tiny corrections are insignificant, but in some instances they play a very big part in the analysis. See figure 1.1 for an example of this phenomenon.

1.2 History of Exponentially Small Splittings.

The topic of exponentially small splittings was first suggested to me by my advisor in the paper "Exponentially Small Splittings of Separatrices with applications to KAM Theory and Degenerate Bifurcations" [8]. In this paper, Philip Homes, Jerrold Marsden, and Jurgen Scheurle deal with the problem of rapidly forced systems with a homoclinic orbit. In particular, the rapidly forced pendulum described by

$$\ddot{\phi} + \sin(\phi) = \varepsilon f(t)$$

when $\varepsilon = 0$, we get homoclinic orbits given explicitly by the equations

$$\overline{\phi}(t) = \pm 2 \tan^{-1}(\sinh(t))$$

$$\overline{v}(t) = \pm 2 \operatorname{sech}(t)$$

For small values of ε the above orbits split and this is where the analysis takes place. The Melnikov function is then used to give some estimates for the splitting distance. The authors make the comment that the splitting distance should be of the order

$$d = 2\pi\varepsilon e^{-\frac{\pi}{2\varepsilon}} \tag{1.1}$$

however, they suggest that it is not easy to justify due to the fact that the errors are $O(\varepsilon^2)$, while 1.1 is already smaller than any power of ε . A Liapunov-Perron type iteration scheme is then used to locate the stable and unstable manifolds. In utilizing the iteration process itself, they keep track of all of the estimates made. A contraction mapping is then used to allow the existence of fixed points, and the stable and unstable manifolds determined by these fixed points are used for the analysis of the splitting distance. Estimates are made on the splitting distance by the use of Sobolev estimates and some hard analysis. They then go on to extend their results to KAM theory and Bifurcation problems. The work carried out by the authors is extensive in its complexity, however they do mention that this paper was only meant to be an outline. It is interesting to note that in their introduction, they mention that Poincaré was aware of the problems that exponentially small splittings could cause in terms of integrability and the convergence of series expansions.

The challenge then of working on exponentially small splitting appealed to me, even though I had not really understood exactly what was going on in the paper. I then learned of a second paper by Marsden, Holmes, and Scheurle which was to expand upon the work carried out in their first paper. The title of this paper was "Exponentially Small Estimates for Separatrix Splittings" [13]. In this paper, the authors review their previous estimates and show that the assumption that the estimates of the splitting distance is given by $a\varepsilon^b e^{-\frac{a}{c}}$ can sometimes be wrong. To do this, they used the following example of planar systems

$$\dot{x} = 1 - x^2$$

$$\dot{y} = \left[2x - (\alpha + 2\beta x)(1 - x^2)\right]y + \delta\cos(\frac{t}{\varepsilon})$$

where α, β, δ , and ε are constants. They assert that for $\delta = 0$ the system has the heteroclinic orbit

$$\Gamma: x = \tanh(t), y = 0$$

joining (-1,0) to (1,0). Their interest lies in the splitting of this orbit for small values of α, β, δ , and ε . Although many important remarks are made by the authors,

one in particular seems to be of the most importance, namely that a singularity can occur in the resulting formula for the splitting distance even though there are no essential singularities in the given problem. Then an impressive amount of analysis is again used to show that

for any integer N, there are constants $c_N > 0$ and $\varepsilon_N > 0$ such that

for
$$\alpha = 0, \beta = -\varepsilon$$
 and $\delta = \varepsilon$, we have

$$d \geq \frac{c_N}{\varepsilon^N} e^{-\frac{\pi}{2\varepsilon}}$$

for all $0 < \varepsilon < \varepsilon_N$

which shows that no sharp upper estimate of the form $a\varepsilon^b e^{-\frac{\pi}{2\varepsilon}}$ can exist. This phenomenon occurs in this specific example with the splitting of a heteroclinic orbit, however the authors feel that this problem is generic and will occur as a result of the iteration schemes used. Thus making it very difficult indeed to actually get an actual upper estimate.

I then had the chance to talk with Dr. Martin Kummer of the University of Toledo, Ohio, and I was able to get a paper written by Dr. Kummer, James A. Ellison, and A.W. Sáenz [9]. In this paper, the rapidly forced pendulum is again used to demonstrate the splitting distance, however this paper uses much more geometry to try and illustrate the actual phenomenon taking place. The results of the work done in this paper are very neatly summed up in the conclusion and so I will quickly sum up these results. The authors make the point that much of the work done previously by Marsden, Holmes, and Scheurle was used, but there are some differences. The main point being that geometry was the main focus of this paper as opposed to only analysis, I found this to be a refreshing change from the hard-core analysis used previously. A second important point is that the paper by Kummer, Ellison, and Sáenz also proves a stable manifold theorem in the process. This paper is highly readable, and seems to explain much of the work done by Marsden, Holmes, and Scheurle.

1.3 History of the Problem of Solitary Water Waves.

In searching for a way to try and understand the problem of exponentially small splittings, I was referred to a paper by Wiktor Eckhaus concerning solitary water waves, this then brought upon a literature search for information concerning solitary water waves. One such paper is titled "A Theory of Solitary Water Waves in the Presence of Surface Tension", written by Charles J. Amick and Klaus Kirchgässner [1]. In this paper, the authors prove that solitary water waves exist on the surface of an inviscid fluid layer in the presence of small surface tension and gravity. They begin by making some assumptions concerning the characteristics of the fluid. They assume that the density of the fluid is constant, that the flow is irrotational, and that the fluid is at rest at infinity. Bernoulli's equation gives

$$p(x,y) + \frac{1}{2} |q(x,y)|^2 + gy = \text{constant}$$
 (1.2)

in the flow domain S, where p denotes the pressure and g > 0 is the acceleration due to gravity. It is then assumed that the unknown free surface may be represented by a function Y and that the constant of proportionality is the surface tension T which is given. Then using this in 1.2 will give

$$\frac{1}{2}|q(x,Y(x))|^2 + gY(x) - TY''(x)/(1+Y'(x)^2)^{\frac{3}{2}} = \text{constant}$$

After some mathematical analysis the equation

$$\frac{\nu}{2}\exp(2\tau) - \int_0^{\phi}\sin(\theta)\exp(-\tau)ds + \gamma\partial_{\phi}\theta\exp(\tau) = \text{constant}, \ \phi \in R$$

is derived, where $\nu = \frac{c^2}{gh}$, $\gamma = \frac{T}{gh^2}$ and c is the speed of light, h is the height of the wave. A reduction theorem is then used to bring the problem to a simpler conclusion. It turns out that when $\gamma > \frac{1}{3}$ the phase space is of dimension 3, however when $\gamma < \frac{1}{3}$ the dimension of the phase space jumps to 5. Some work is done in both cases, and the result is the model equation:

$$\varepsilon^2 \frac{d^4 y}{dx^4} + \frac{d^2 y}{dx^2} - y + y^2 = 0 \tag{1.3}$$

A second paper written by J.M. Hammersley and G. Mazzarino, entitled "Computational Aspects of Some Autonomous Differential Equations" [7], begins with 1.3 and has the conditions

$$rac{dy(0)}{dx}=0, rac{dy}{dx}<0, ext{ and } \lim_{x o\infty}y(x)=0$$

with the exception that the perturbation term is denoted as ε rather then ε^2 . The main interest of their paper lies in the behavior of $\frac{d^3y}{dx^3}$ at the point x = 0. It will turn out that this is the exact same phenomenon studied by Eckhaus in the paper that

I will follow. They prove that this quantity is strictly positive and they investigate it numerically as a function of ε . It is then speculated that the process utilized by Hammersley and Mazzarino could possibly be applied to various autonomous differential equations. It will be noted in the following chapters where our results seem to be in agreement with those of Hammersley and Mazzarino.

The paper that I chose to follow was written by Wiktor Eckhaus of the Mathematical Institute in Rijksuniversiteit, Utrecht entitled "Singular Perturbations of Homoclinic Orbits in \mathbb{R}^4 "[5]. This was an interesting paper due to the simplicity of the homoclinic orbit and the speed with which it splits. In his model equation, with the limit $\varepsilon = 0$, one finds an integral

$$\left(\frac{dy}{dx}\right)^2 = y^2 - \frac{2}{3}y^3 + c$$

and for c = 0 we then get a homoclinic orbit in the $\left(y, \frac{dy}{dx}\right)$ plane. See figure 1.2

The solution y(x) of this limit problem tends to 0 as $x \to \pm \infty$, and the question is asked

Do there exist non-trivial solutions for the singularly perturbed model

ie. when $\varepsilon \neq 0$, which tend to zero for $x \to \pm \infty$?

This is the problem that Eckhaus addresses in his paper and he does so by examining the behavior of the homoclinic orbit and whether or not it exists after the perturbation term is introduced.



:

3

Figure 1.1: Homoclinic orbit before perturbation



Figure 1.2: Homoclinic orbit after the perturbation term is introduced

Chapter 2

The Integral Part of the Thesis.

In this section, we will try and find an integral for 1.3.

2.1 An Equation for the Integral and Trajectories.

Let us multiply 1.3 by $\frac{dy}{dx}$ to get

$$\varepsilon^2 \frac{d^4 y}{dx^4} \frac{dy}{dx} + \frac{d^2 y}{dx^2} \frac{dy}{dx} - y \frac{dy}{dx} + y^2 \frac{dy}{dx} = 0$$

Then notice that

$$\int y^2 \frac{dy}{dx} = \frac{1}{3}y^3 + c_1$$
$$\int y \frac{dy}{dx} = \frac{1}{2}y^2 + c_2$$
$$\int \frac{d^2y}{dx^2} \frac{dy}{dx} = \frac{1}{2}\left(\frac{dy}{dx}\right)^2 + c_3$$

and

$$\int \varepsilon^2 \frac{d^4y}{dx^4} \frac{dy}{dx} = \varepsilon^2 \left[\frac{dy}{dx} \frac{d^3y}{dx^3} - \int \frac{d^3y}{dx^3} \frac{d^2y}{dx^2} \right] = \varepsilon^2 \left[\frac{dy}{dx} \frac{d^3y}{dx^3} - \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{d^2y}{dx^2} \right)^2 + c_4 \right]$$

Thus we get

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ \frac{dy}{dx} \frac{d^{3}y}{dx^{3}} - \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{d^{2}y}{dx^{2}} \right)^{2} \right\} = -\frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{dy}{dx} \right)^{2} + \frac{1}{2} y^{2} - \frac{1}{3} y^{3} + c$$
(2.1)

Note that

$$\frac{d}{dy}\left(\frac{dy}{dx}\right)^2 = 2\frac{dy}{dx}\frac{d^2y}{dydx} = 2\frac{d^2y}{dx^2}$$

and

$$\frac{1}{2}\frac{dy}{dx}\frac{d^2}{dy^2}\left(\frac{dy}{dx}\right)^2 = \frac{1}{2}\frac{dy}{dx}\frac{d}{dy}\left(2\frac{dy}{dx}\frac{d^2y}{dydx}\right) = \frac{dy}{dx}\frac{d}{dy}\left(\frac{d^2y}{dx^2}\right) = \frac{d^3y}{dx^3}$$

so that if we now set

$$z = \left(\frac{dy}{dx}\right)^2 \tag{2.2}$$

then we will have

$$\frac{d^2y}{dx^2} = \frac{1}{2}\frac{dz}{dy}$$

and

$$\frac{d^3y}{dx^3} = \frac{1}{2}z^{\frac{1}{2}}\frac{d^2z}{dy^2}$$

So now we have:

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ z^{\frac{1}{2}} \left(\frac{1}{2} z^{\frac{1}{2}} \frac{d^{2}z}{dy^{2}} \right) - \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2} \frac{dz}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} = -\frac{1}{2} z + \frac{1}{2} y^{2} - \frac{1}{3} y^{3} + c$$

Which we write as:

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ z \frac{d^{2}z}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{dz}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + z = y^{2} - \frac{2}{3}y^{3} + c$$
(2.3)

and this gives us an equation for the trajectories. We are searching for an equation for the trajectory where c = 0 in the hopes of finding a homoclinic orbit living in the $\left(y, \frac{dy}{dx}\right)$ plane as in the limit case $\varepsilon = 0$. In 2.3 we have reduced the problem from 4th to 2nd order, and we have y as the independent variable. The problem is that the equation is highly non-linear and degenerates for z = 0. However, we will be using 2.3 in all the calculations that follow.

2.2 Formal Approximation by Straightforward Iteration

We are trying to find a homoclinic orbit, and so to do this we will put in 2.3 c = 0. We are searching for an expansion of the form

$$z = z_0 + \varepsilon^2 z_1 + \cdots$$

and we wish to find general formulae for the z_k . We will then try to find solutions by using these formal approximations. The equation we are trying to solve is

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ z \frac{d^{2}z}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{dz}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + z = y^{2} \left(1 - \frac{2}{3}y \right)$$

$$(2.4)$$

with $\varepsilon = 0$ the above equation becomes

$$z_0 = y^2 \left(1 - \frac{2}{3}y \right) \tag{2.5}$$

We introduce the transformation

$$z(y,\varepsilon) = z_0(y) + \varepsilon^2 \rho_1(y,\varepsilon)$$

to get the equation

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ (z_{0} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{1}) \frac{d^{2}}{dy^{2}} (z_{0} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{1}) - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{d}{dy} (z_{0} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{1}) \right)^{2} \right\} + z_{0} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{1} = y^{2} \left(1 - \frac{2}{3} y \right)$$

$$\Rightarrow \varepsilon^2 \left\{ (z_0 + \varepsilon^2 \rho_1) \left(\frac{d^2 z_0}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \frac{d^2 \rho_1}{dy^2} \right) - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{d z_0}{dy} + \varepsilon^2 \frac{d \rho_1}{dy} \right)^2 \right\} + z_0 + \varepsilon^2 \rho_1 = z_0$$

$$\Rightarrow \varepsilon^{2} \left\{ z_{0} \frac{d^{2} \rho_{1}}{dy^{2}} + \rho_{1} \frac{d^{2} z_{0}}{dy^{2}} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{1} \frac{d^{2} \rho_{1}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_{0}}{dy} \frac{d\rho_{1}}{dy} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2}}{4} \left(\frac{d\rho_{1}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + \rho_{1} = f_{1}(y)$$

where

$$f_1(y) = -z_0 \frac{d^2 z_0}{dy^2} + \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{dz_o}{dy}\right)^2$$

so let us repeat this operation, performing the iteration again by putting

$$ho_1(y,\varepsilon) = z_1(y) + \varepsilon^2
ho_2(y,\varepsilon)$$

 $z_1(y) = f_1(y)$

,

So substituting we obtain

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ \left(z_{0} + \varepsilon^{2} (z_{1} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{2}) \right) \frac{d^{2}}{dy^{2}} (z_{1} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{2}) - \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_{0}}{dy} \frac{d}{dy} (z_{1} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{2}) \right. \\ \left. + (z_{1} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{2}) \frac{d^{2} z_{0}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2}}{4} \left(\frac{d}{dy} (z_{1} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{2}) \right)^{2} \right\} + z_{1} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{2} = z_{1}$$

$$\Rightarrow (z_0 + \varepsilon^2 z_1 + \varepsilon^4 \rho_2) \left(\frac{d^2 z_1}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \frac{d^2 \rho_2}{dy^2} \right) - \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_0}{dy} \left(\frac{dz_1}{dy} + \varepsilon^2 \frac{d\rho_2}{dy} \right) + z_1 \frac{d^2 z_0}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \rho_2 \frac{d^2 z_0}{dy^2}$$
$$- \frac{\varepsilon^2}{4} \left(\frac{dz_1}{dy} + \varepsilon^2 \frac{d\rho_2}{dy} \right)^2 + \rho_2 = 0$$

,

.

$$\Rightarrow \varepsilon^{2} \left\{ z_{0} \frac{d^{2} \rho_{2}}{dy^{2}} + z_{1} \frac{d^{2} z_{1}}{dy^{2}} + \varepsilon^{2} z_{1} \frac{d^{2} \rho_{2}}{dy^{2}} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{2} \frac{d^{2} z_{1}}{dy^{2}} + \varepsilon^{4} \rho_{2} \frac{d^{2} \rho_{2}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_{0}}{dy} \frac{d\rho_{2}}{dy} + \rho_{2} \frac{d^{2} z_{0}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{dz_{1}}{dy} + \varepsilon^{2} \frac{d\rho_{2}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + \rho_{2} = -z_{0} \frac{d^{2} z_{1}}{dy^{2}} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_{0}}{dy} \frac{dz_{1}}{dy} - z_{1} \frac{d^{2} z_{0}}{dy^{2}}$$

•

$$\Rightarrow \varepsilon^2 \left\{ (z_0 + \varepsilon^2 z_1 + \varepsilon^4 \rho_2) \frac{d^2 \rho_2}{dy^2} + (z_1 + \varepsilon^2 \rho_2) \frac{d^2 z_1}{dy^2} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_0}{dy} \frac{d\rho_2}{dy} - \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon^2 \frac{dz_1}{dy} \frac{d\rho_2}{dy} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{dz_1}{dy}\right)^2 \right\}$$

$$-\frac{\varepsilon^4}{4} \left(\frac{d\rho_2}{dy}\right)^2 + \rho_2 \frac{d^2 z_0}{dy^2} \right\} + \rho_2 = -z_0 \frac{d^2 z_1}{dy^2} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_0}{dy} \frac{dz_1}{dy} - z_1 \frac{d^2 z_0}{dy^2}$$

which can also be written as

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ (z_{0} + \varepsilon^{2} z_{1} + \varepsilon^{4} \rho_{2}) \frac{d^{2} \rho_{2}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_{0}}{dy} \frac{d\rho_{2}}{dy} - \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon^{2} \frac{dz_{1}}{dy} \frac{d\rho_{2}}{dy} - \frac{\varepsilon^{4}}{4} \left(\frac{d\rho_{2}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right. \\ \left. + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{2} \frac{d^{2} z_{1}}{dy^{2}} + \rho_{2} \frac{d^{2} z_{0}}{dy^{2}} \right\} + \rho_{2} = -z_{0} \frac{d^{2} z_{1}}{dy^{2}} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_{0}}{dy} \frac{dz_{1}}{dy} - z_{1} \frac{d^{2} z_{0}}{dy^{2}} \\ \left. - \varepsilon^{2} z_{1} \frac{d^{2} z_{1}}{dy^{2}} + \frac{\varepsilon^{2}}{4} \left(\frac{dz_{1}}{dy^{2}} \right)^{2} \right]$$
(2.6)

or if we notice that by doing this type of iteration repetitively we get

$$z(y,\varepsilon) = \sum_{n=0}^{m-1} \varepsilon^{2n} z_n(y) + \varepsilon^{2m} \rho_m(y,\varepsilon)$$
(2.7)

With this, we may now introduce the definition

.

$$\Phi_m = \sum_{n=0}^{m-1} \varepsilon^{2n} z_n \tag{2.8}$$

.

so that we now have

$$z = \Phi_m + \varepsilon^{2m} \rho_m \tag{2.9}$$

Now we can write equation 2.6 as

.

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ (\Phi_{2} + \varepsilon^{2 \cdot 2} \rho_{2}) \frac{d^{2} \rho_{2}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_{2}}{dy} \frac{d\rho_{2}}{dy} + \frac{d^{2} \Phi_{2}}{dy^{2}} \rho_{2} - \frac{1}{4} \varepsilon^{2 \cdot 2} \left(\frac{d\rho_{2}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + \rho_{2} = f_{2} \quad (2.10)$$

where

.

.

.

$$f_2 = -\left\{ (z_0 + \varepsilon^2 z_1) \frac{d^2 z_1}{dy^2} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_0}{dy} \frac{dz_1}{dy} + \frac{d^2 z_0}{dy^2} z_1 - \frac{1}{4} \varepsilon^2 \left(\frac{dz_1}{dy}\right)^2 \right\}$$

and we are hoping for a general recursion formula, so we do the integration one more time in hopes of finding a pattern. So we set

$$egin{aligned} &
ho_2 = z_2 + arepsilon^2
ho_3 \ &z_2 = f_2 \end{aligned}$$

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ (z_{0} + \varepsilon^{2} z_{1} + \varepsilon^{4} (z_{2} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{3})) \frac{d^{2}}{dy^{2}} (z_{2} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{3}) - \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_{0}}{dy} \frac{d}{dy} (z_{2} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{3}) - \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon^{2} \frac{dz_{1}}{dy} \frac{d}{dy} (z_{2} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{3}) - \frac{\varepsilon^{4}}{4} \left(\frac{d}{dy} (z_{2} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{3}) \right)^{2} + \varepsilon^{2} (z_{2} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{3}) \frac{d^{2} z_{1}}{dy^{2}} + (z_{2} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{3}) \frac{d^{2} z_{0}}{dy^{2}} \right\} + (z_{2} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{3}) = z_{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (z_{0} + \varepsilon^{2} z_{1} + \varepsilon^{4} z_{2} + \varepsilon^{6} \rho_{3}) \left(\frac{d^{2} z_{2}}{dy^{2}} + \varepsilon^{2} \frac{d^{2} \rho_{3}}{dy^{2}} \right) - \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz_{0}}{dy} \left(\frac{dz_{0}}{dy} + \varepsilon^{2} \frac{d\rho_{3}}{dy} \right)$$

$$\begin{split} -\frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2}\frac{dz_{1}}{dy}\left(\frac{d^{2}z_{2}}{dy^{2}}+\varepsilon^{2}\frac{d^{2}\rho_{3}}{dy^{2}}\right) &-\frac{\varepsilon^{4}}{4}\left(\frac{d^{2}z_{2}}{dy^{2}}+\varepsilon^{2}\frac{d^{2}\rho_{3}}{dy^{2}}\right)^{2}+\varepsilon^{2}(z_{2}+\varepsilon^{2}\rho_{3})\frac{d^{2}z_{1}}{dy^{2}}\\ &+(z_{2}+\varepsilon^{2}\rho_{3})\frac{d^{2}z_{0}}{dy^{2}}+\rho_{3}=0\\ \Rightarrow\varepsilon^{2}\left\{(z_{0}+\varepsilon^{2}z_{1}+\varepsilon^{4}z_{2}+\varepsilon^{6}\rho_{3})\frac{d^{2}\rho_{3}}{dy^{2}}+\varepsilon^{4}\rho_{3}\frac{d^{2}z_{2}}{dy^{2}}-\frac{1}{2}\frac{dz_{0}}{dy}\frac{d\rho_{3}}{dy}\\ &-\frac{\varepsilon^{2}}{2}\frac{dz_{1}}{dy}\frac{d\rho_{3}}{dy}-\frac{\varepsilon^{4}}{2}\frac{dz_{2}}{dy}\frac{d\rho_{3}}{dy}-\frac{\varepsilon^{6}}{4}\left(\frac{d\rho_{3}}{dy}\right)^{2}+\varepsilon^{2}\rho_{3}\frac{d^{2}z_{1}}{dy^{2}}+\rho_{3}\frac{d^{2}z_{0}}{dy^{2}}\right\}+\rho_{3}\\ &=-(z_{0}+\varepsilon^{2}z_{1}+\varepsilon^{4}z_{2})\frac{d^{2}z_{2}}{dy^{2}}+\frac{1}{2}\frac{dz_{0}}{dy}\frac{dz_{2}}{dy}+\frac{\varepsilon^{2}}{2}\frac{dz_{1}}{dy}\frac{dz_{2}}{dy}+\frac{\varepsilon^{4}}{4}\left(\frac{dz_{2}}{dy}\right)^{2}\\ &-\varepsilon^{2}z_{2}\frac{d^{2}z_{1}}{dy^{2}}-z_{2}\frac{d^{2}z_{0}}{dy^{2}}\\ &\Rightarrow\varepsilon^{2}\left\{\left(\Phi_{3}+\varepsilon^{2}\beta_{3}\right)\frac{d^{2}\rho_{3}}{dy^{2}}-\frac{1}{2}\left(\frac{dz_{0}}{dy}+\varepsilon^{2}\frac{dz_{1}}{dy}+\varepsilon^{4}\frac{dz_{2}}{dy}\right)\frac{d\rho_{3}}{dy}\\ &+\left(\frac{d^{2}z_{0}}{dy^{2}}+\varepsilon^{2}\frac{d^{2}z_{1}}{dy^{2}}+\varepsilon^{4}\frac{d^{2}z_{2}}{dy^{2}}\right)\rho_{3}-\varepsilon^{2}\beta\left(\frac{d\rho_{3}}{dy}\right)^{2}\right\}+\rho_{3}=-\left\{\Phi_{3}\frac{d^{2}z_{2}}{dy^{2}}\\ &-\frac{1}{2}\left(\frac{dz_{0}}{dy}+\varepsilon^{2}\frac{dz_{1}}{dy}\right)\frac{dz_{2}}{dy}+\left(\frac{d^{2}z_{0}}{dy^{2}}+\varepsilon^{2}\frac{d^{2}z_{1}}{dy^{2}}\right)z_{2}-\frac{\varepsilon^{2}\beta}{4}\left(\frac{dz_{2}}{dy}\right)^{2}\right\} \end{split}$$

which can be expressed as

.

,

.

.

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ \left(\Phi_{3} + \varepsilon^{2 \cdot 3} \rho_{3} \right) \frac{d^{2} \rho_{3}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_{3}}{dy} \frac{d\rho_{3}}{dy} + \frac{d^{2} \Phi_{3}}{dy^{2}} \rho_{3} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2 \cdot 3}}{4} \left(\frac{d\rho_{3}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + \rho_{3}$$
$$= -\left\{ \Phi_{3} \frac{d^{2} z_{2}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_{2}}{dy} \frac{dz_{2}}{dy} + \frac{d^{2} \Phi_{2}}{dy^{2}} z_{2} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2 \cdot 2}}{4} \left(\frac{dz_{2}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\}$$

. .

So now comparing this with 2.10 allows us to speculate on a general recursion formula for ρ_n and f_n , namely

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ \left(\Phi_{n} + \varepsilon^{2n} \rho_{n} \right) \frac{d^{2} \rho_{n}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_{n}}{dy} \frac{d\rho_{n}}{dy} + \frac{d^{2} \Phi_{n}}{dy^{2}} \rho_{n} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2n}}{4} \left(\frac{d\rho_{n}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + \rho_{n}$$

$$= - \left\{ \Phi_{n} \frac{d^{2} z_{n-1}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_{n-1}}{dy} \frac{dz_{n-1}}{dy} + \frac{d^{2} \Phi_{n-1}}{dy^{2}} z_{n-1} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2(n-1)}}{4} \left(\frac{dz_{n-1}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\}$$
(2.11)

we will refer to the right side of this equation as f_n which by our substitution is just z_n . So to be thorough a proof by induction is needed so that we are sure the formula holds for all postitive integers.

Proof: The base case has been done above. So we assume 2.11 and use the substitution $\rho_n = z_n + \varepsilon^2 \rho_{n+1}$.

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ \left(\Phi_{n} + \varepsilon^{2n} (z_{n} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{n+1}) \right) \frac{d^{2}}{dy^{2}} (z_{n} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{n+1}) - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_{n}}{dy} \frac{d}{dy} (z_{n} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{n+1}) \right. \\ \left. + \frac{d^{2}\Phi_{n}}{dy^{2}} (z_{n} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{n+1}) - \frac{1}{4} \varepsilon^{2n} \left(\frac{d}{dy} (z_{n} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{n+1}) \right)^{2} \right\} + z_{n} + \varepsilon^{2} \rho_{n+1} = z_{n}$$

which gives

$$\begin{split} (\Phi_n + \varepsilon^{2n} z_n + \varepsilon^{2(n+1)} \rho_{n+1}) \left(\frac{d^2 z_n}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \frac{d^2 \rho_{n+1}}{dy^2} \right) &- \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_n}{dy} \left(\frac{dz_n}{dy} + \varepsilon^2 \frac{d\rho_{n+1}}{dy} \right) \\ &+ \frac{d^2 \Phi_n}{dy^2} (z_n + \varepsilon^2 \rho_{n+1}) - \frac{1}{4} \varepsilon^{2n} \left(\frac{dz_n}{dy} + \varepsilon^2 \frac{d\rho_{n+1}}{dy} \right)^2 + \rho_n = 0 \end{split}$$

so we get

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ \left(\Phi_{n+1} + \varepsilon^{2(n+1)} \rho_{n+1} \right) \frac{d^{2} \rho_{n+1}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{d\Phi_{n}}{dy} + \varepsilon^{2n} \frac{dz_{n}}{dy} \right) \frac{d\rho_{n+1}}{dy} \right. \\ \left. + \left(\frac{d^{2} \Phi_{n}}{dy^{2}} + \varepsilon^{2n} \frac{d^{2} z_{n}}{dy^{2}} \right) \rho_{n+1} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2(n+1)}}{4} \left(\frac{d\rho_{n+1}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + \rho_{n+1} = - \left\{ \Phi_{n+1} \frac{d^{2} z_{n}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_{n}}{dy} \frac{dz_{n}}{dy} \right. \\ \left. + \frac{d^{2} \Phi_{n}}{dy^{2}} z_{n} - \frac{1}{4} \varepsilon^{2n} \left(\frac{dz_{n}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\}$$

and this is just

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ (\Phi_{n+1} + \varepsilon^{2(n+1)}\rho_{n+1}) \frac{d^{2}\rho_{n+1}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_{n}}{dy} \frac{d\rho_{n+1}}{dy} + \frac{d^{2}\Phi_{n+1}}{dy^{2}}\rho_{n+1} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2(n+1)}}{4} \left(\frac{d\rho_{n+1}}{dy}\right)^{2} \right\}$$
$$+\rho_{n+1} = -\left\{ \Phi_{n+1} \frac{d^{2}z_{n}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d\Phi_{n}}{dy} \frac{dz_{n}}{dy} + \frac{d^{2}\Phi_{n}}{dy^{2}} z_{n} - \frac{1}{4} \varepsilon^{2n} \left(\frac{dz_{n}}{dy}\right)^{2} \right\}$$

which completes the proof by induction.

2.3 Formal Approximation by Power Series

Now we will compute a formal power series expansion for z(y) which at the same time is an asymptotic expansion in ε . So define

$$Lz := \varepsilon^{2} \left\{ z \frac{d^{2}z}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{dz}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + z - y^{2} + \frac{2}{3}y^{3}$$
(2.12)

and we introduce

$$\tilde{\Phi}_m(y) = \alpha y^2 - \beta y^3 - \sum_{n=1}^m a_n y^{n+3}$$
(2.13)

Which is just a truncated power series. Now we substitute $\tilde{\Phi}_m(y)$ in for z(y) to produce

.

$$L\tilde{\Phi}_m = \varepsilon^2 \left\{ \tilde{\Phi}_m \frac{d^2 \tilde{\Phi}_m}{dy^2} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{d\tilde{\Phi}_m}{dy} \right)^2 \right\} + \tilde{\Phi}_m - y^2 + \frac{2}{3} y^3$$

$$=\varepsilon^{2}\left\{\left(\alpha y^{2}-\beta y^{3}-\sum_{n=1}^{m}a_{n}y^{n+3}\right)\frac{d^{2}}{dy^{2}}\left(\alpha y^{2}-\beta y^{3}-\sum_{n=1}^{m}a_{n}y^{n+3}\right)\right.\\\left.\left.-\frac{1}{4}\left(\frac{d}{dy}\left(\alpha y^{2}-\beta y^{3}-\sum_{n=1}^{m}a_{n}y^{n+3}\right)\right)^{2}\right\}+\alpha y^{2}-\beta y^{3}-\sum_{n=1}^{m}a_{n}y^{n+3}-y^{2}+\frac{2}{3}y^{3}$$

$$=\varepsilon^{2}\left\{\left(\alpha y^{2}-\beta y^{3}-\sum_{n=1}^{m}a_{n}y^{n+3}\right)\left(2\alpha-6\beta y-\sum_{n=1}^{m}a_{n}(n+3)(n+2)y^{n+1}\right)\right.\\\left.\left.-\frac{1}{4}\left(2\alpha y-3\beta y^{2}-\sum_{n=1}^{m}a_{n}(n+3)y^{n+2}\right)^{2}\right\}+(\alpha-1)y^{2}+\left(\frac{2}{3}-\beta\right)y^{3}-\sum_{n=1}^{m}a_{n}y^{n+3}$$

$$= \varepsilon^{2} \left\{ \alpha^{2} y^{2} - 5\alpha\beta y^{3} - \alpha y^{2} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}(n+3)(n+2)y^{n+1} + \frac{15}{4}\beta^{2} y^{4} \right.$$
$$\left. + \beta y^{3} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}(n+3)(n+2)y^{n+1} - 2\alpha \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}y^{n+3} + 6\beta y \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}y^{n+3} \right.$$
$$\left. + \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}y^{n+3} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}(n+3)(n+2)y^{n+1} - \frac{3}{2}\beta y^{2} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}(n+3)y^{n+2} + \alpha y \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}(n+3)y^{n+2} \right.$$
$$\left. - \frac{1}{4} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}(n+3)y^{n+2} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}(n+3)y^{n+2} \right\} + (\alpha-1)y^{2} + \left(\frac{2}{3} - \beta\right)y^{3} - \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}y^{n+3}$$

$$= (\varepsilon^2 \alpha^2 + \alpha - 1)y^2 + \left(\frac{2}{3} - \beta(1 + 5\alpha\varepsilon^2)\right)y^3$$

.

$$+y^{4} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n} \left[-\varepsilon^{2} \alpha (n+3)(n+2) - 2\varepsilon^{2} \alpha + \varepsilon^{2} \alpha (n+3) - 1 \right] y^{n-1} + y^{4} \varepsilon^{2} \left\{ \frac{15}{4} \beta^{2} + y\beta \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n} \left[(n+3)(n+2) + 6 - \frac{3}{2}(n+3) \right] y^{n-1} + y^{2} \left[\sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n} y^{n-1} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n} (n+3)(n+2) y^{n-1} - \frac{1}{4} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n} (n+3) y^{n-1} \sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n} (n+3) y^{n-1} \right] \right\}$$

and so collecting like terms and reorganizing

$$L\widetilde{\Phi}_{m} = (\varepsilon^{2}\alpha^{2} + \alpha - 1)y^{2} + \left(\frac{2}{3} - \beta(1 + 5\alpha\varepsilon^{2})\right)y^{3}$$
$$-y^{4}\sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n} \left[1 + \varepsilon^{2}\alpha\left[(n+3)(n+1) + 2\right]\right]y^{n-1} + \varepsilon^{2}y^{4} \left\{\frac{15}{4}\beta^{2} + y\beta\sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n} \left[(n+3)(n+\frac{1}{2}) + 6\right]y^{n-1} + y^{2} \left[\sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}y^{n-1}\sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}(n+3)(n+2)y^{n-1} - \frac{1}{4}\left(\sum_{n=1}^{m} a_{n}(n+3)y^{n-1}\right)^{2}\right]\right\}$$
(2.14)

We can now determine α , β , and $a_n, n = 1, ..., m$ by putting all the coefficients of $y^p, p = 2, ..., m+3$ on the right hand side of equation 2.14 equal to zero. So we have that

$$\varepsilon^2 \alpha^2 + \alpha - 1 = 0$$

 $\Rightarrow \alpha = \frac{-1 \pm \sqrt{1 + 4\varepsilon^2}}{2\varepsilon^2}$

and we take α to be the positive solution to the above so that α is the solution the linearized model equation. We also find that

$$\frac{2}{3} - \beta(1 + 5\alpha\varepsilon^2) = 0 \Rightarrow \beta = \frac{2}{3}\frac{1}{1 + 5\alpha\varepsilon^2}$$

Now set the coefficient of y^4 equal to zero to get

$$-a_1 \left[1 + \varepsilon^2 \alpha \left(4 \cdot 2 + 2 \right) \right] + \varepsilon^2 \frac{15}{4} \beta^2 = 0$$

$$\Rightarrow a_1 = \varepsilon^2 \frac{15\beta^2}{4} \frac{1}{1 + 10\varepsilon^2 \alpha}$$

we will also look at the coefficients of y^5 in order to get an equation for a_2 .

$$-a_2 \left[1 + \varepsilon^2 \alpha \left(5 \cdot 3 + 2 \right) \right] + \varepsilon^2 \beta a_1 \left[4 \left(1 + \frac{1}{2} \right) + 6 \right] = 0$$
$$\Rightarrow a_2 = \varepsilon^4 \beta^3 \frac{45}{1 + 10\varepsilon^2 \alpha} \frac{1}{1 + 17\varepsilon^2 \alpha}$$

So we see that without the condition that α was positive, we would have a_1 possibly being negative, and we want positive values for all the a_n . Let us now determine a_3 to look for a pattern in their structure.

$$-a_{3}\left[1+\varepsilon^{2}\alpha\left(6\cdot4+2\right)\right]+\varepsilon^{2}\beta a_{2}\left[5\cdot\frac{11}{2}+6\right]+a_{1}a_{1}4\cdot3-\frac{1}{4}a_{1}a_{1}4\cdot4=0$$

$$a_{3}\left[1+26\varepsilon^{2}\alpha\right]=\frac{67}{2}\varepsilon^{2}\beta\varepsilon^{4}\beta^{3}\frac{45}{1+10\varepsilon^{2}\alpha}\frac{1}{1+17\varepsilon^{2}\alpha}-8\left(\varepsilon^{2}\frac{15\beta^{2}}{4}\frac{1}{1+10\varepsilon^{2}\alpha}\right)^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow a_{3}=\left[\frac{67}{2}\varepsilon^{6}\beta^{4}\frac{45}{1+10\varepsilon^{2}\alpha}\frac{1}{1+17\varepsilon^{2}\alpha}-8\left(\varepsilon^{2}\frac{15\beta^{2}}{4}\frac{1}{1+10\varepsilon^{2}\alpha}\right)^{2}\right]\frac{1}{1+26\varepsilon^{2}\alpha}$$

So by inspection of the formulas, we are able to determine that

$$a_n = O(\varepsilon^{2n}), a_n > 0$$

We summarize these results as

$$\begin{split} \tilde{\Phi}_m(y) &= \alpha y^2 - \beta y^3 - \sum_{n=0}^m \varepsilon^{2n} \overline{a}_n y^{n+3} \\ &\overline{a}_n = O(1) \\ &\overline{a}_n > 0 \text{ for } \varepsilon > 0 \\ &L \tilde{\Phi}_m = \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} y^{m+4} \sum_{p=0}^m \sigma_p y^p \\ &\sigma_p = O(1), \sigma_p > 0 \end{split}$$

This will then give us

$$z = \widetilde{\Phi}_m + \varepsilon^{2(m+2)} \overline{\rho}_m$$

where $\overline{\rho}_m$ is a remainder term. We will be using the power series expansion when we deal with the problem of splitting the homoclinic orbit.

In the work done by Hammersley and Mazzarino [7], a formal power series similar to 2.13 is used, in particular

$$f = \lambda^2 z^2 \left(1 - \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} c_n z^n \right)$$

as a basic step in their analysis. The coefficients are determined by a recursion formula and convergence results are given. However, for ε small, the authors do not do the analysis. The results gained by Hammersley and Mazzarino [7] are encouraging as they do support the results obtained here. Their numerical computations suggest the same results that will be shown in the following chapters.

Chapter 3

What Does it All Mean?

3.1 The Solution for z(y) and the Result

Our basic equation is

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ z \frac{d^{2}z}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{dz}{dy} \right)^{2} \right\} + z = y^{2} (1 - \frac{2}{3}y)$$
(3.1)

We are trying to find a homoclinic orbit, so in order to do this we look for solutions z(y) which for $y \to 0$ behave as y^2 . We look for this type of solution due to the way $z(y) = y^2 - \frac{2}{3}y^3$ approximates y^2 as y = 0. To achieve this we introduce the transformation

$$z = y^2 \overline{z}$$

to get the equation

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ y^{2} \left[\overline{z} \frac{d^{2} \overline{z}}{dy^{2}} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{d \overline{z}}{dy} \right)^{2} \right] + 3y \overline{z} \frac{d \overline{z}}{dy} \right\} + \overline{z} (1 + \varepsilon^{2} \overline{z}) = 1 - \frac{2}{3} y \qquad (3.2)$$

then write

$$\overline{z} = \varphi_m + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_m$$

where φ_m is the result of the formal iteration of section 2.2 or the truncated power series of section 2.3, in both cases with y^2 factored out. So φ_m is really just a polynomial in y. Substituting \overline{z} into 3.2 we derive

$$\begin{split} \varepsilon^{2} \left\{ y^{2} \left[(\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m}) \frac{d^{2}}{dy^{2}} (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m}) - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{d}{dy} (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m}) \right)^{2} \right] \right. \\ \left. + 3y (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m}) \frac{d}{dy} (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m}) \right\} + (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m}) (1 + \varepsilon^{2} (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m})) \\ \left. = 1 - \frac{2}{3} y \right] \\ \left. \Rightarrow \varepsilon^{2} y^{2} (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m}) \left(\varphi_{m}'' + \varepsilon^{2m} \frac{d^{2} \psi_{m}}{dy^{2}} \right) - \frac{\varepsilon^{2} y^{2}}{4} \left(\varphi_{m}' + \varepsilon^{2m} \frac{d}{dy} \psi_{m} \right)^{2} \\ \left. + 3\varepsilon^{2} y (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m}) \left(\varphi_{m}' + \varepsilon^{2m} \frac{d}{dy} \psi_{m} \right) + (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m}) (1 + (\varphi_{m} + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi_{m})) \right] \\ \left. = 1 - \frac{2}{3} y \right] \end{split}$$

which simplifies to

$$\left[\varepsilon^{2m}y^{2}(\varphi_{m}+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi_{m})\right]\frac{d^{2}\psi_{m}}{dy^{2}}+\varepsilon^{2}\left[3y(\varphi_{m}+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi_{m})-\frac{1}{2}y^{2}(\varphi_{m}'+\frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m}\psi_{m}')\right]\frac{d\psi_{m}}{dy}+\psi_{m}=\overline{f}_{m}(y)-\varepsilon^{2}\left\{y^{2}\varphi_{m}''+3y\varphi_{m}'+(2\varphi_{m}+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi_{m})\right\}\psi_{m}$$

$$(3.3)$$

where

$$\overline{f}_m(y) = \frac{1 - \frac{2}{3}y - \varepsilon^2 y^2 \varphi_m \varphi_m'' + \frac{\varepsilon^2 y^2}{4} (\varphi_m') - \varepsilon^2 \varphi_m^2}{\varepsilon^{2m}}$$

which is just a polynomial in y since φ_m is a polynomial in y. We use both primes and the $\frac{d}{dy}$ notation to denote the derivative so that we can try to produce general formulas. In Chapter 4 we will prove the following main result.

 \mathbf{Result}

There exists a unique solution $\psi_m(y;\varepsilon)$, which on an interval $y \in [0, y_0]$ is bounded for $\varepsilon \downarrow 0$ and the same is true for the derivative $\psi'_m(y;\varepsilon)$. y_0 satisfies the estimate

$$|\varphi_m(y;\varepsilon)| \ge c\varepsilon^m$$

with c a constant and $m \geq 2$.

Remarks

Note that m is an arbitrary integer and so we have the existence of a solution which starts out as y^2 and goes to zero faster than any power of ε . We also have that $y_0 > \frac{3}{2}$. We wonder what happens to the continuation of the solution. z(y) can not stop at some positive value, it must continue, so suppose that the continuation escapes to some large value. This is only possible at $y > y_0$. The problem arises because at some z > 0 one would have $\frac{dz}{dy} = 0$ and $\frac{d^2z}{dy^2} \ge 0$ and this leads to a contradiction in the equation 3.1. Now suppose that $z \to 0$ as $y \to y_1 > y_0$, with z'also tending to zero. Since z' comes from negative values and did not pass through zero, we must still have $z'' \ge 0$ and this again gives a contradiction in 3.1. This contradiction remains if we take $y_1 = +\infty$ or if we assume that z tends to a non-zero positive value as $y \to \infty$. Thus the continuation of the solution z(y) must reach z = 0 with a non-zero slope.
3.2 Splitting of the Homoclinic Orbit

We start by defining two half orbits $y_+(x)$, $x \in (-\infty, 0]$, $y_-(x)$, $x \in [0, \infty)$ as solutions of

$$\left(\frac{dy}{dx}\right)_{\pm} = \pm \sqrt{z(y)}$$

$$y_{+}(0) = y_{-}(0) = y_{1}(\varepsilon)$$

$$z(y_{1}) = 0$$
(3.4)

What happens to $y_+(x)$ and $y_-(x)$ at x = 0? We are interested in the regularity of the union of these two half orbits. Since the model equation is of fourth order, we need continuity up to and including the fourth derivative. So let us compute

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{d^2 y}{dx^2} \end{pmatrix}_{\pm} = \frac{d}{dx} \left(\frac{dy}{dx} \right)_{\pm} = \frac{d}{dx} \left(\pm \sqrt{z(y)} \right) = \pm \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{\sqrt{z}} \left(\frac{dz}{dx} \right)_{\pm}$$
$$= \pm \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{\sqrt{z}} \frac{dz}{dy} \left(\frac{dy}{dx} \right)_{\pm} = \pm \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{\sqrt{z}} \frac{dz}{dy} (\pm) \sqrt{z} = \frac{1}{2} \frac{dz}{dy}$$

hus

$$\left(\frac{d^2y}{dx^2}\right)_+ = \left(\frac{d^2y}{dx^2}\right)_-$$
 at $x = 0$

From 1.3, the above, and the fact that $y_+(0) = y_-(0)$ we get that

$$\left(\frac{d^4y}{dx^4}\right)_+ = \left(\frac{d^4y}{dx^4}\right)_-$$
 at $x = 0$

Now from previous results we have

$$\left(\frac{d^3y}{dx^3}\right)_{\pm} = \frac{1}{2}\left(\frac{dy}{dx}\right)_{\pm}\frac{d^2z}{dy^2} = \pm \frac{1}{2}\sqrt{z}\frac{d^2z}{dy^2}$$

.

٠

remember that we are trying to establish continuity of the third derivative. We compute the third derivative by the use of the Laplace transform. We use

$$L\left\{f\right\}(s) = \int_{-\infty}^{0} f(-t)e^{st}dt$$

Now we make the substitution $u = \frac{d^2y}{dx^2}$ and so the equation that we are trying to solve is $\varepsilon^2 u'' + u = (y - y^2)$. So consider

$$L\left\{\varepsilon^{2}u''+u\right\} = L\left\{y-y^{2}\right\}$$
$$\Rightarrow L\left\{\varepsilon^{2}u''\right\} + L\left\{u\right\} = L\left\{y-y^{2}\right\}$$
$$\Rightarrow \varepsilon^{2}s^{2}L\left\{u\right\} + L\left\{u\right\} = L\left\{y-y^{2}\right\}$$
$$\Rightarrow L\left\{u\right\} = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^{2}s^{2}+1}L\left\{y-y^{2}\right\}$$
$$\Rightarrow L\left\{u\right\} = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^{2}s^{2}+1}L\left\{y-y^{2}\right\}$$
$$\Rightarrow L\left\{u\right\} = \frac{1}{\varepsilon}\frac{1}{\varepsilon^{2}+\frac{1}{\varepsilon^{2}}}L\left\{y-y^{2}\right\}$$
$$\Rightarrow L\left\{u\right\} = \frac{1}{\varepsilon}L\left\{\sin\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}x\right)\right\}L\left\{y-y^{2}\right\}$$

and so by the convolution theorem

•

$$\Rightarrow u = \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \int_{-\infty}^{0} \sin\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}(x-\xi)\right) \left[y(\xi) - y^{2}(\xi)\right] d\xi$$

thus we have

•

$$\left(\frac{d^2y}{dx^2}\right)_{+} = \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \int_{-\infty}^{0} \sin\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}(x-\xi)\right) \left[y(\xi) - y^2(\xi)\right] d\xi$$

So now we differentiate to get

$$\frac{d^3y_+}{dx^3}(0) = I(\varepsilon)$$

where

$$I(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi) \left[y(\xi) - y^2(\xi) \right] d\xi$$

We wish to compute the integral along approximate trajectories, so we replace z(y)in 3.4 by its asymptotic expansions. So we define $y^{(m)}(x), x < 0$, as

$$\frac{dy^{(m)}}{dx} = \sqrt{\Phi_m(y;\varepsilon)}$$

with Φ_m the asymptotic expansion defined in section 2.2. Now, define

$$I^{(m)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right) \left[y^{(m)}(\xi) - (y^{(m)}(\xi))^2\right] d\xi$$

In the Appendix, we have the integrals computed for m = 1 and m = 2. These integrals are due to dr. N. Temme of C.W.I. Amsterdam who did the analysis involved. These results can be summarized as follows:

$$\Phi_m = \sum_{n=0}^{m-1} \varepsilon^{2n} z_n(y), m = 1, 2$$
$$I^{(m)}(\varepsilon) = -\frac{\pi}{\varepsilon^5} c_m e^{-\frac{\pi}{\varepsilon}} [1 + o(1)]$$
$$c_1 = 6, c_2 \cong 3.6c_1$$

So a small correction in the trajectories does not result in a small change in the constant c_m . Hammersley and Mazzarino [7] came up with a very similar result for the integral I_m , their result was the reward for complicated and extensive numerical calculations. For large values of m, we can expect that the constants c_m will settle to a definite value but analytical determination seems beyond possibility. The complicated evaluation for m = 1 and m = 2 gives this impression. However, we can show that the integral $I^{(m)}$ is negative for all m as was shown in [7].

We recall some relevant formulas

$$Lz = \varepsilon^2 \left(z \frac{d^2 z}{dy^2} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{dz}{dy} \right)^2 \right) + z - y^2 + \frac{2}{3} y^3$$
$$\widetilde{\Phi}_m(y) = \alpha y^2 + \beta y^3 - \sum_{n=1}^m \varepsilon^{2n} \overline{\alpha}_n y^{n+3}$$
$$L\widetilde{\Phi}_m = \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} f_m(y)$$
$$f_m(y) = y^{m+4} \sum_{p=0}^m \sigma_p y^p$$
$$\sigma_p = o(1), \sigma_p > 0$$

Now we want to look at $\tilde{y}^{(m)}(x)$ which is a solution for x < 0 of the equation

$$\frac{d\widetilde{y}^{(m)}}{dx} = \sqrt{\widetilde{\Phi}_m(y^{(m)})}$$

Now consider the original equation

$$\varepsilon^2 \frac{d^4 y}{dx^4} + \frac{d^2 y}{dx^2} = y - y^2$$

and using 2.3 we get

$$\frac{d}{dy}\left[\varepsilon^2\left\{z\frac{d^2z}{dy^2} - \frac{1}{4}\left(\frac{dz}{dy}\right)^2\right\} + z\right] = 2\left[\varepsilon^2\frac{d^4y}{dx^4} + \frac{d^2y}{dx^2}\right]$$

and so

$$\frac{d}{dy} \left[\varepsilon^2 \left\{ z \frac{d^2 z}{dy^2} - \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{dz}{dy} \right)^2 \right\} + z - y^2 + \frac{2}{3} y^3 \right]$$
$$= 2 \left[\varepsilon^2 \frac{d^4 y}{dx^4} + \frac{d^2 y}{dx^2} \right] - 2y + 2y^2$$

So $\tilde{y}^{(m)}$ satisfies

$$\varepsilon^2 \frac{d^4 \tilde{y}^{(m)}}{dx^4} + \frac{d^2 \tilde{y}^{(m)}}{dx^2} = \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} f'_m(\tilde{y}^{(m)}) + \tilde{y}^{(m)} - \left(\tilde{y}^{(m)}\right)^2$$

with

$$f'_m(\widetilde{y}^{(m)}) = \frac{d}{dy} f_m(\widetilde{y}^{(m)})$$

so by using the Laplace transform once again, we get

$$\left(\frac{d^2 \tilde{y}^{(m)}}{dx^2}\right)_+ = \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \int_{-\infty}^0 \sin\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}(x-\xi)\right) \left[\tilde{y}^{(m)}(\xi) - \left(\tilde{y}^{(m)}\right)^2(\xi) + \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2(m+1)}f'_m(\tilde{y}^{(m)})\right] d\xi$$

and so

$$\frac{d^3 \widetilde{y}_+^{(m)}}{dx^3}(0) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left(-\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right) \left[\widetilde{y}^{(m)} - \left(\widetilde{y}^{(m)}\right)^2 + \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2(m+1)}f'_m(\widetilde{y}^{(m)})\right]$$
$$= \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right) \left[\widetilde{y}^{(m)} - \left(\widetilde{y}^{(m)}\right)^2 + \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2(m+1)}f'_m(\widetilde{y}^{(m)})\right]$$

.

.

٠

So we have that

$$\frac{d^3\widetilde{y}_+^{(m)}}{dx^3} = \frac{1}{2}\widetilde{\Phi}_m^{\frac{1}{2}} \frac{d^2\widetilde{\Phi}_m}{(d\widetilde{y}^{(m)})^2}$$

since the quantity on the right hand side of the above equation is just a polynomial, we have $\frac{d^3 \tilde{y}_{+}^{(m)}}{dx^3}(0) = 0$ since this is how we determined the coefficients for $\tilde{\Phi}_m$. This then allows us to get

$$0 = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right) \left[\tilde{y}^{(m)}(\xi) - \left(\tilde{y}^{(m)}(\xi)\right)^2 + \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2(m+1)}f'(\tilde{y}^{(m)})\right] d\xi$$
$$\Rightarrow 0 = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right) \left[\tilde{y}^{(m)}(\xi) - \left(\tilde{y}^{(m)}(\xi)\right)^2\right] d\xi$$
$$+ \frac{1}{2}\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} \cos\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right) f'(\tilde{y}^{(m)}) d\xi$$
$$\Rightarrow I^{(m)}(\varepsilon) = -\frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right) f'(\tilde{y}^{(m)}) d\xi$$

Now remember that

$$f'(\tilde{y}^{(m)}) = \frac{d}{dy} f(\tilde{y}^{(m)}) = \frac{d}{dy} \left(y^{m+4} \sum_{p=0}^{m} \sigma_p y^p \right)$$
$$= \frac{d}{dy} \sum_{p=0}^{m} \sigma_p y^{p+m+4}$$
$$= \sum_{p=0}^{m} (p+m+4) \sigma_p y^{p+m+3}$$

So

$$I^{(m)}(\varepsilon) = -\frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m} \int_{-\infty}^{0} \cos\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right) \sum_{p=0}^{m} (p+m+4)\sigma_p \left[\tilde{y}^{(m)}\right]^{p+m+3} d\xi$$
$$= -\frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m} \sum_{p=0}^{m} \sigma_p (p+m+4) \int_{-\infty}^{0} \cos\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right) \left[\tilde{y}^{(m)}\right]^{p+m+3} d\xi$$

Now in order for $I^{(m)}(\varepsilon)$ to be negative, the integrals in the summation must all be positive. $\tilde{y}^{(m)}$ is a monotonic function and for all ξ ranging from $-\infty$ to 0 is positive. So if we consider the function on intervals like $\left[-\frac{2\pi}{\varepsilon}, 0\right], \left[-\frac{4\pi}{\varepsilon}, -\frac{2\pi}{\varepsilon}\right]$, etc. we see that we get a net positive contribution. We also have that $\sigma_p > 0$ thus

 $I^{(m)}(\varepsilon) < 0, \forall m.$

Chapter 4

The Proof of the Result

In this section we will prove the result given in Chapter 3 and we will simplify notations by dropping the subscript m.

4.1 The General Idea

The equation 3.3 is of the following structure

$$\Psi(\psi) = \overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 g_1(y,\psi) \tag{4.1}$$

$$\Psi \doteq \varepsilon^2 A(y,\psi) \frac{d^2}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 B(y,\psi,\psi') \frac{d}{dy} + 1$$
(4.2)

$$A(y,\psi) = y^2(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)$$
(4.3)

$$B(y,\psi,\psi') = -\frac{1}{2}y^2(\varphi' + \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m}\psi') + 3y(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)$$
(4.4)

$$g_1(y,\psi) = -\left\{y^2\varphi'' + 3y\varphi' + (2\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\right\}\psi$$
(4.5)

We want to prove the existence of a bounded solution. We would like to decompose $\Psi = \Psi_1 + \Psi_2$ so that

$$\Psi_1(\psi) + \Psi_2(\psi) = \overline{f} + \varepsilon^2 g_1$$

or

$$\Psi_1(\psi) = -\Psi_2(\psi) + \overline{f} + \varepsilon^2 g_1$$

and if Ψ_1^{-1} existed then we could find

$$\psi = \Psi_1^{-1} \left(-\Psi_2(\psi) + \overline{f} + \varepsilon^2 g_1 \right)$$

To make things work out nicely, we will try to use a linear operator for Ψ_1 . The problem is that we get nonlinear terms on the right hand side of the equation. It will be possible to get rid of occurrences of the second derivative, but the first derivative can not be avoided and so we must study the problem for ψ' . So consider

$$\Psi(\psi) = \overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 g_1(y, \psi) \tag{4.6}$$

Now use 4.2 and differentiate with respect to y

$$\begin{split} \frac{d}{dy}\Psi(\psi) &= \left[\frac{d}{dy}\varepsilon^2 y^2(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\frac{d^2\psi}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \left(-\frac{1}{2}y^2(\varphi' + \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m}\psi') + 3y(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\right)\frac{d\psi}{dy} \\ &\quad +\psi\cdot\right] \\ &= \varepsilon^2 \left(y^2(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\right)\frac{d^2\psi'}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2\frac{d\psi'}{dy}\left[2y(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi) + y^2(\varphi' + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi') \\ &\quad -\frac{1}{2}y^2\frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m}\psi' - \frac{1}{2}y^2(\varphi' + \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m}\psi') + 3y(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\right] + \psi' \\ &\quad +\psi'\varepsilon^2 \left[-y(\varphi' + \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m}\psi') - \frac{1}{2}y^2\varphi'' + 3y(\varphi' + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi') + 3(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\right] \end{split}$$

which gives

$$\varepsilon^2 y^2 (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi) \frac{d^2 \psi'}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \frac{d\psi'}{dy} \left[5y(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi) + \frac{1}{2} y^2 (\varphi' + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi') \right] + \psi'$$

$$+\psi'\varepsilon^{2}\left[2y\varphi'+\frac{5}{2}y\varepsilon^{2m}\psi'-\frac{1}{2}y^{2}\varphi''+3(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\right]$$

and

$$\begin{split} \frac{d}{dy} \left(\overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 g_1(y, \psi) \right) \\ &= \overline{f}(y) - \frac{d}{dy} \varepsilon^2 \left\{ y^2 \varphi'' + 3y \varphi' + (2\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi) \right\} \psi \\ &= \overline{f}(y) - \varepsilon^2 \left[(2y \varphi'' + y^2 \varphi''' + 3\varphi' + 3y \varphi'' + 2\varphi' + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi') \psi \right. \\ &+ \left(y^2 \varphi'' + 3y \varphi' + (2\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi) \right) \psi' \right] \\ &\overline{f}(y) - \varepsilon^2 \left[(y^2 \varphi''' + 5y \varphi'' + 5\varphi') \psi + \left(y^2 \varphi'' + 3y \varphi' + (2\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi) + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi \right) \psi' \right] \end{split}$$

So we now have

=

$$\widetilde{\Psi} = \varepsilon^2 A(y, \psi) \frac{d^2}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \overline{B}(y, \psi, \psi') \frac{d}{dy} + 1$$
(4.7)

with A as in 4.3 and

$$\overline{B}(y,\psi,\psi') = 5y(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi) + \frac{1}{2}y^2(\varphi' + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi')$$

$$\widetilde{\Psi}(\psi') = \overline{f}'(y) + \varepsilon^2 g_2(y,\psi,\psi')$$
(4.8)

where

$$g_{2} = -(y^{2}\varphi^{\prime\prime\prime} + 5y\varphi^{\prime\prime} + 5\varphi^{\prime})\psi - \left(y^{2}\varphi^{\prime\prime} + 3y\varphi^{\prime} + (2\varphi + 2\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\right)\psi^{\prime}$$
$$-\psi^{\prime}\left[2y\varphi^{\prime} + \frac{5}{2}y\varepsilon^{2m}\psi^{\prime} - \frac{1}{2}y^{2}\varphi^{\prime\prime} + 3(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\right]$$
$$= -(y^{2}\varphi^{\prime\prime\prime} + 5y\varphi^{\prime\prime} + 5\varphi^{\prime})\psi - \left\{5(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi) + y(5\varphi^{\prime} + \frac{5}{2}\varepsilon^{2m}\psi^{\prime})\right\}$$

$$+y^{2}(\varphi''-\frac{1}{2}\varphi'')\bigg\}\psi'$$

$$=-(y^{2}\varphi'''+5y\varphi''+5\varphi')\psi-\left\{5(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)+5y(\varphi'+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi')\right\}$$

$$+\frac{1}{2}y^{2}\varphi''-\frac{5}{2}\varepsilon^{2m}y\psi'\bigg\}\psi'$$
(4.9)

Now we put our attention to finding a suitable operator Ψ_1 and for this we take a small recess into WKB functions.

4.2 Excerpt on "exact WKB functions".

WKB (Wentzel, Kramers, Brillouin) approximations have been used by physicists for many applications. Here, we are only going to use a special case and the procedure we need is as follows. Consider the homogeneous equation

$$\varepsilon^2 a \frac{d^2\theta}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 b \frac{d\theta}{dy} + \theta = 0$$
(4.10)

where a and b are given functions. We introduce

 $\theta=e^{\frac{1}{\epsilon}Q}$

So that

$$\frac{d\theta}{dy} = \frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q'e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q}$$
$$\frac{d^2\theta}{dy^2} = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2}(Q')^2e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q} + \frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q''e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q}$$

To get

$$\varepsilon^2 a \left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \left(Q' \right)^2 e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q} + \frac{1}{\varepsilon} Q'' e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q} \right) + \varepsilon^2 b \frac{1}{\varepsilon} Q' e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q} + e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q} = 0$$

which yields

$$a (Q')^2 e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q} + \varepsilon a Q'' e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q} + \varepsilon b Q' e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q} + e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}Q} = 0$$

or

$$a(Q')^{2} + \varepsilon aQ'' + \varepsilon bQ' + 1 = 0$$

Now introduce a formal expression for Q.

$$Q = q_0 + \varepsilon q_1 + \varepsilon^2 q_2 + \cdots$$
$$Q' = q'_0 + \varepsilon q'_1 + \varepsilon^2 q'_2 + \cdots$$
$$Q'' = q''_0 + \varepsilon q''_1 + \varepsilon^2 q''_2 + \cdots$$

So we have

•

$$a(q'_0 + \varepsilon q'_1 + \varepsilon^2 q'_2 + \cdots)^2 + \varepsilon a(q''_0 + \varepsilon q''_1 + \varepsilon^2 q''_2 + \cdots)$$
$$+ \varepsilon b(q'_0 + \varepsilon q'_1 + \varepsilon^2 q'_2 + \cdots) + 1 = 0$$

and equating coefficients of ε^{0} and ε^{1} will give

$$\varepsilon^0: a(q_0')^2 + 1 = 0$$

$$\varepsilon^{1} : aq_{1}'q_{0}' + aq_{0}'q_{1}' + aq_{0}' + bq_{0}' = 0$$

So

$$(q_0')^2 = -\frac{1}{a}$$
 giving $q_0' = \pm i \frac{1}{\sqrt{a}}$

 $q_1' = \frac{-aq_0'' - bq_0'}{2aq_0'}$

 $= \frac{-a'}{4a^2(q_0')^2} - \frac{1}{2}\frac{b}{a}$

 $=\frac{a'}{4a}-\frac{1}{2}\frac{a}{b}$

and

So

$$q_0 = \pm i \int^y \frac{1}{\sqrt{a(t)}} dt$$
$$q_1 = \frac{1}{4} \int \frac{a'}{a} - \int^y \frac{1}{2} \frac{b(t)}{a(t)} dt$$
$$= \frac{1}{4} \ln a - \frac{1}{2} \int^y \frac{b}{a} dt$$

Hence as a formal WKB approximation we get

$$\theta \sim \exp\left\{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\left(\pm i\int^{y}\frac{1}{\sqrt{a(t)}}dt + \varepsilon\ln a^{\frac{1}{4}} - \frac{\varepsilon}{2}\int^{y}\frac{b}{a}dt\right)
ight\}$$

So call

$$\theta_0 = \exp\left\{-\frac{1}{2}\int^y \frac{b(t)}{a(t)}dt\right\}a^{\frac{1}{4}}\exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon}\int^y \frac{1}{\sqrt{a(t)}}dt\right\}$$

In our case the equations 4.3, 4.4, 4.8 vanish at y = 0 and the proof of validity appears difficult. Luckily we will not need to prove validity in the approach we will follow. We will consider what differential equation is satisfied exactly by the WKB approximation. In the case of $\tilde{\Psi}$ with m = 0 we have

$$\widetilde{\Psi} = \varepsilon^2 y^2 \varphi \frac{d^2}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 (5y\varphi + \frac{1}{2}y^2\varphi') \frac{d}{dy} + 1$$

In regards to the computation of the WKB approximation,

$$a = y^2 \varphi$$
$$b = 5y\varphi + \frac{1}{2}y^2\varphi'$$

so

$$\begin{aligned} \theta_0 &= \exp\left\{-\frac{1}{2}\int^y \frac{5y\varphi + \frac{1}{2}y^2\varphi'}{y^2\varphi}dy\right\} \left(y^2\varphi\right)^{\frac{1}{4}} \exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon}\int^y \frac{1}{\sqrt{t^2\varphi}}dt\right\} \\ &= y^{\frac{-5}{2}}\varphi^{\frac{-1}{4}}y^{\frac{1}{2}}\varphi^{\frac{1}{4}} \exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon}\int^y \frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}}dt\right\} \\ &= \frac{1}{y^2}\exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon}\int^y \frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}}dt\right\} \end{aligned}$$

Now

$$\frac{d\theta_0}{dy} = \frac{1}{y^2} \exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^y \frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}} dt\right\} \left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \left(\frac{-1}{y^2\varphi}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} + \frac{-2}{y^3}\right]$$
$$\varepsilon^2 b \frac{d\theta_0}{dy} = \left[\frac{5\varepsilon\varphi}{y} \left(\frac{-1}{y^2\varphi}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} - \frac{10\varepsilon^2\varphi}{y^2} + \frac{\varepsilon\varphi'}{2} \left(\frac{-1}{y^2\varphi}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} - \frac{\varepsilon^2\varphi'}{y}\right] \exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^y \frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}} dt\right\}$$

and

$$\frac{d^2\theta_0}{dy^2} = \frac{1}{y^2} \exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^y \frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}} dt\right\} \frac{1}{2\varepsilon} \left(\frac{-1}{y^2\varphi}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \left(\frac{2y\varphi + y^2\varphi'}{(y^2\varphi)^2}\right) \\ + \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \left(\frac{-1}{y^2\varphi}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^y \frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}} dt\right\} \left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon y^2} \left(\frac{-1}{y^2\varphi}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} - \frac{2}{y^3}\right]$$

$$\begin{split} &-\exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon}\int^{y}\frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}}dt\right\}\left[\frac{2}{y^{3}}\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}-\frac{6}{y^{4}}\right]\\ &\varepsilon^{2}a\frac{d^{2}\theta_{0}}{dy^{2}}=\left[\frac{\varepsilon\varphi}{2}\left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi}\right)^{-\frac{1}{2}}\left(\frac{2\varphi+y\varphi'}{y^{3}\varphi^{2}}\right)+\varphi\left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi}\right)-\frac{4\varepsilon\varphi}{y}\left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\right.\\ &\left.+\frac{6\varepsilon^{2}\varphi}{y^{2}}\right]\exp\left\{\pm\frac{i}{\varepsilon}\int^{y}\frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}}dt\right\} \end{split}$$

Now we can evaluate

$$\begin{split} \varepsilon^{2} \left\{ a \frac{d^{2}\theta_{0}}{dy^{2}} + b \frac{d\theta_{0}}{dy} \right\} + \theta_{0} \\ &= \exp \left\{ \pm \frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^{y} \frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}} dt \right\} \left[\frac{\varepsilon}{2} \left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi} \right)^{-\frac{1}{2}} \left(\frac{2\varphi + y\varphi'}{y^{3}\varphi} \right) - \frac{1}{y^{2}} - \frac{4\varepsilon\varphi}{y} \left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi} \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} + \frac{6\varepsilon^{2}\varphi}{y^{2}} \right. \\ &+ \frac{5\varepsilon\varphi}{y} \left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi} \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} - \frac{10\varepsilon^{2}\varphi}{y^{2}} + \frac{\varepsilon\varphi'}{2} \left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi} \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2}\varphi'}{y} + \frac{1}{y^{2}} \right] \\ &= \exp \left\{ \pm \frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^{y} \frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}} dt \right\} \left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi} \right)^{-\frac{1}{2}} \left[\frac{\varepsilon}{2} \left(\frac{2\varphi + y\varphi'}{y^{3}\varphi} \right) - \frac{\varepsilon}{y^{3}} - \frac{\varepsilon\varphi'}{2y^{2}\varphi} \right. \\ &- \left(\frac{-1}{y^{2}\varphi} \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \left(\frac{4\varepsilon^{2}\varphi}{y^{2}} + \frac{\varepsilon^{2}y\varphi'}{y^{2}} \right) \right] \\ &= - \exp \left\{ \pm \frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^{y} \frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi}} dt \right\} \left(\frac{4\varepsilon^{2}\varphi + \varepsilon^{2}y\varphi'}{y^{2}} \right) \\ &= -\varepsilon^{2} (4\varphi + y\varphi')\theta_{0} \end{split}$$

and so

$$\varepsilon^{2} \left\{ a \frac{d^{2}\theta_{0}}{dy^{2}} + b \frac{d\theta_{0}}{dy} \right\} + \theta_{0} = -\varepsilon^{2} (4\varphi + y\varphi')\theta_{0}$$

and so θ_0 exactly satisfies a mildly perturbed original equation. Note that the above equation holds for φ replaced by $\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi$. This is very elegant yet at the same time,

so

Eckhaus discards it since difficulties arise in trying to use it in the construction of a contraction mapping. We will now define explicitly the operator Ψ_1 .

$$\Psi_1 = \varepsilon^2 y^2 \varphi \frac{d^2}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \left[5y\varphi + \frac{1}{2}y^2 \varphi' \right] \frac{d}{dy} + \left[1 + \varepsilon^2 (4\varphi + y\varphi') \right] \cdot 1$$
(4.11)

Then

$$\theta_0^{(1)}, \theta_0^{(2)} = \frac{1}{y^2} \exp\left\{\pm \frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^y \frac{dt}{t\sqrt{\varphi}}\right\}$$

gives two linearly independent solutions to the homogeneous equation $\Psi_1 \theta_0 = 0$.

Eckhaus remarks that the simple approach of adding in an additional perturbation term to allow us to use the WKB approximation as an exact solution is not found in any of the literature.

4.3 Transformation to Integral Equation

Let us consider an inhomogeneous problem

$$\Psi_1(\hat{\psi}) = R \tag{4.12}$$

where Ψ_1 is the operator defined in the previous section. We would like to find bounded solutions on some non-empty interval $y \in [0, y_0]$ where $y_0 > 0$. So we suppose a solution for 4.12 of the form

$$\widehat{\psi} = u_1 \theta_0^{(1)} + u_2 \theta_0^{(2)}$$

then using variation of parameters we have

$$u_{1}' = -\frac{\theta_{0}^{(2)}}{\theta_{0}^{(1)} \left(\theta_{0}^{(2)}\right)' - \theta_{0}^{(2)} \left(\theta_{0}^{(1)}\right)'} R(y)$$
$$u_{2}' = -\frac{\theta_{0}^{(1)}}{\theta_{0}^{(1)} \left(\theta_{0}^{(2)}\right)' - \theta_{0}^{(2)} \left(\theta_{0}^{(1)}\right)'} R(y)$$

and

•

$$\begin{aligned} \theta_0^{(1)} \left(\theta_0^{(2)}\right)' &- \theta_0^{(2)} \left(\theta_0^{(1)}\right)' \\ = \theta_0^{(1)} \left[\frac{1}{y^2} \exp\left\{ -\frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^y \frac{dt}{y\sqrt{\varphi}} \right\} \frac{-1}{\varepsilon} \left(\frac{-1}{y^2 \varphi} \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} + \frac{-2}{y^3} \exp\left\{ -\frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^y \frac{dt}{y\sqrt{\varphi}} \right\} \right] \\ &- \theta_0^{(2)} \left[\frac{1}{y^2} \exp\left\{ \frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^y \frac{dt}{y\sqrt{\varphi}} \right\} \frac{-1}{\varepsilon} \left(\frac{-1}{y^2 \varphi} \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} + \frac{-2}{y^3} \exp\left\{ \frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int^y \frac{dt}{y\sqrt{\varphi}} \right\} \right] \\ &= \theta_0^{(1)} \left(\theta_0^{(2)} \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \left(-i \right) \frac{1}{y\sqrt{\varphi}} + \theta_0^{(2)} \frac{-2}{y} \right) - \theta_0^{(2)} \left(\theta_0^{(1)} \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \frac{1}{y\sqrt{\varphi}} + \theta_0^{(1)} \frac{-2}{y} \right) \\ &= \frac{-2i}{\varepsilon} \theta_0^{(1)} \theta_0^{(2)} \left(\frac{1}{y\sqrt{\varphi}} \right) \end{aligned}$$

So

$$\begin{split} u_1' &= \frac{R\varepsilon}{2i\theta_0^{(1)}y\sqrt{\varphi}} \\ u_2' &= \frac{-R\varepsilon}{2i\theta_0^{(2)}y\sqrt{\varphi}} \end{split}$$

Thus

·

$$u_{1} = \frac{\varepsilon}{2i} \int_{0}^{y} \frac{R(t)dt}{\theta_{0}^{(1)}t\sqrt{\varphi(t)}}$$
$$u_{2} = \frac{-\varepsilon}{2i} \int_{0}^{y} \frac{R(t)dt}{\theta_{0}^{(2)}t\sqrt{\varphi(t)}}$$

•

·

Now we can get

$$\begin{aligned} \widehat{\psi} &= \left(\frac{\varepsilon}{2i} \int_{0}^{y} \frac{R(t)}{\theta_{0}^{(1)}(t)t\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} dt\right) \theta_{0}^{(1)}(y) \\ &+ \left(\frac{-\varepsilon}{2i} \int_{0}^{y} \frac{R(t)}{\theta_{0}^{(2)}(t)t\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} dt\right) \theta_{0}^{(2)}(y) \\ &= \frac{\varepsilon}{2i} \int_{0}^{y} \left(\frac{\theta_{0}^{(1)}(y)}{\theta_{0}^{(1)}(t)} - \frac{\theta_{0}^{(2)}(y)}{\theta_{0}^{(2)}(t)}\right) \frac{R(t)}{t\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} dt \\ &= \frac{\varepsilon}{2i} \int_{0}^{y} \frac{\theta_{0}^{(1)}(y)\theta_{0}^{(2)}(t) - \theta_{0}^{(2)}(y)\theta_{0}^{(1)}(t)}{\theta_{0}^{(1)}(t)\theta_{0}^{(2)}(t)} \frac{R(t)}{t\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} dt \end{aligned}$$

 and

$$\theta_0^{(1)}(t)\theta_0^{(2)}(t) = \frac{1}{t^4}$$
$$\hat{\psi} = \frac{\varepsilon}{2i} \int_0^y \left\{ \theta_0^{(1)}(y)\theta_0^{(2)}(t) - \theta_0^{(2)}(y)\theta_0^{(1)}(t) \right\} t^3 \frac{R(t)}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} dt$$

However, substituting back into 4.12 leaves us with $\Psi_1(\hat{\psi}) = \varepsilon^2 R$ and so we must adjust $\hat{\psi}$ by a factor of $\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2}$. So now we define

$$\Omega(t,y) = \int_{y}^{t} \frac{d\xi}{\xi \sqrt{\varphi(\xi)}}$$

 and

$$\begin{aligned} \theta_0^{(1)}(y)\theta_0^{(2)}(t) &= \frac{1}{y^2} \exp\left\{\frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int_0^y \frac{dt}{t\sqrt{\varphi}}\right\} \frac{1}{t^2} \exp\left\{-\frac{i}{\varepsilon} \int_0^t \frac{dt}{t\sqrt{\varphi}}\right\} \\ &= \frac{1}{y^2 t^2} \exp\left\{\frac{-i}{\varepsilon} \int_y^t \frac{dt}{t\sqrt{\varphi}}\right\} \\ &= \frac{1}{y^2 t^2} \exp\left\{\frac{-i}{\varepsilon}\Omega\right\} \end{aligned}$$

and by the same reasoning

$$\theta_0^{(2)}(y)\theta_0^{(1)}(t) = \frac{1}{y^2 t^2} \exp\left\{\frac{i}{\varepsilon}\Omega\right\}$$

Now putting it all together yields

$$\widehat{\psi}(y) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \frac{\varepsilon}{2i} \int_0^y \frac{1}{y^2} \left(e^{-\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega} - e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega} \right) t \frac{1}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} R(t) dt$$

and so

$$\hat{\psi}(y) = \frac{-1}{\varepsilon y^2} \int_0^y \frac{e^{-\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega} - e^{\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega}}{2i} t \frac{1}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} R(t) dt$$
$$= \frac{-1}{\varepsilon y^2} \int_0^y \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega\right] t \frac{1}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} R(t) dt$$

Now we show that $\widehat{\psi}(y)$ is bounded as $y \to 0$. First we note that since $|\sin x| \le 1$ for all x hence

$$\left|\widehat{\psi}(y)\right| \leq rac{1}{arepsilon} rac{1}{arepsilon^2} \left(\int_0^y rac{t}{\sqrt{arphi(t)}} dt
ight) \sup_{y \in [0,y_0]} |R(y)|$$

This estimate is valid on all intervals $y \in [0, y_0]$ with $\varphi(y) \ge 0$. Of course R(y) must be such that $\sup |R(y)|$ exists on the interval $[0, y_0]$. Now

$$\frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} dt \le c \text{ for some constant } c$$

and so

$$\left|\widehat{\psi}(y)
ight|\leq rac{c}{arepsilon}\sup\left|R
ight|$$

We now suppose that R is differentiable, and we will use the fact that

$$\frac{d}{dt}\cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right] = -\sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right]\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\frac{d}{dt}\Omega(t,y)$$
$$= -\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right]\frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi(t)}}$$

to show that

$$\widehat{\psi}(y) = \frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \left(\frac{d}{dt} \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t, y)\right] \right) t^2 R(t) dt$$

We now integrate by parts to get

$$\begin{split} \widehat{\psi}(y) &= \frac{1}{y^2} \left(t^2 R(t) \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t, y)\right]_0^y - \int_0^y \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t, y)\right] \frac{d}{dt} t^2 R(t) dt \right) \\ &= R(y) - \frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t, y)\right] \frac{d}{dt} \left(t^2 R(t) \right) dt \end{split}$$

Now let $\varepsilon \downarrow 0$

.

$$\left|\frac{1}{y^2}\int_0^y \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right]\frac{d}{dt}\left(t^2R(t)\right)dt\right| \le \frac{1}{y^2}y^2R(y) = R(y)$$

and so $\widehat{\psi}(y)$ is bounded as $\varepsilon \downarrow 0$. Thus $\widehat{\psi}(y)$ is O(1). Now suppose R(t) is twice differentiable so that we may integrate

$$-\frac{1}{y^2}\int_0^y \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right]\frac{d}{dt}\left(t^2R(t)\right)dt$$

by parts. First notice that

$$\frac{d}{dt}\sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right] = \frac{1}{\varepsilon}\cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right]\frac{1}{t\sqrt{\varphi(t)}}$$

and so

$$\cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right] = \varepsilon t \sqrt{\varphi(t)} \frac{d}{dt} \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right]$$

Thus

$$-\frac{1}{y^2}\int_0^y \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right]\frac{d}{dt}\left(t^2R(t)\right)dt$$

becomes

$$-\frac{\varepsilon}{y^2}\int_0^y t\sqrt{\varphi(t)}\frac{d}{dt}\sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right]\frac{d}{dt}\left(t^2R(t)\right)dt$$

so now doing the integration will give

,

$$-\frac{\varepsilon}{y^2} \left(t\sqrt{\varphi(t)} \frac{d}{dt} \left(t^2 R(t) \right) \sin \left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t, y) \right]_0^y \right.$$
$$\left. -\int_0^y \sin \left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t, y) \right] \frac{d}{dt} \left(t\sqrt{\varphi(t)} \frac{d}{dt} (t^2 R(t)) \right) dt \right)$$
$$= \frac{\varepsilon}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin \left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t, y) \right] \frac{d}{dt} \left[t\sqrt{\varphi} \frac{d}{dt} \left(t^2 R \right) \right] dt$$

and so

$$\widehat{\psi}(y) = R(y) + \frac{\varepsilon}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right] \frac{d}{dt} \left[t\sqrt{\varphi}\frac{d}{dt} \left(t^2 R\right)\right] dt$$

which then tells us that $\hat{\psi}(y) = R(y) + O(\varepsilon)$. Now we turn our attention to the problem for ψ and ψ' . In this section of the analysis, it will be convenient to define

$$S_1[R](y) = -\frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right] \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} R(t) dt$$
$$S_2[R](y) = -\frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)\right] \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} R(t) dt$$

so that on intervals $y \in [0, y_0]$ with $\varphi(y) \ge 0$ we have

$$|S_{1,2}[R]| \le c \sup |R|$$

and if R(t) is twice differentiable then

$$\frac{1}{\varepsilon}S_1[R](y) = R(y) + O(\varepsilon)$$

4.3.1 The problem for ψ .

We start with 4.1 to 4.5 and 4.11 so that we get

$$\begin{split} \Psi_{1}(\psi) &= \varepsilon^{2} y^{2} \varphi \frac{d^{2} \psi}{dy^{2}} + \varepsilon^{2} \left[5y\varphi + \frac{1}{2} y^{2} \varphi' \right] \frac{d\psi}{dy} + \left[1 + \varepsilon^{2} (4\varphi + y\varphi') \right] \psi \\ &= \varepsilon^{2} y^{2} (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi) \frac{d^{2} \psi}{dy^{2}} - \varepsilon^{2} y^{2} \varepsilon^{2m} \psi \frac{d^{2} \psi}{dy^{2}} \\ &+ \varepsilon^{2} \left(\frac{-1}{2} y^{2} (\varphi' + \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon^{2m} \psi') + 3y (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi) \right) \frac{d\psi}{dy} \\ &+ \varepsilon^{2} \left[2y\varphi + y^{2} \varphi' + \frac{1}{4} y^{2} \varepsilon^{2m} \psi' - 3y \varepsilon^{2m} \psi \right] \frac{d\psi}{dy} + \psi + \varepsilon^{2} (4\varphi + y\varphi') \psi \end{split}$$

$$\begin{split} &= \Psi(\psi) - \varepsilon^2 y^2 \varphi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \left[2y\varphi + y^2 \varphi' + \frac{1}{4} y^2 \varepsilon^{2m} \psi' - 3y \varepsilon^{2m} \psi \right] \frac{d\psi}{dy} \\ &\quad + \varepsilon^2 (4\varphi + y\varphi') \psi \\ &= \overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 g_1(y, \psi) + \varepsilon^2 (2y\varphi + y^2 \psi) \psi' + \varepsilon^2 \left(\frac{1}{4} y^2 \varepsilon^{2m} \psi' - 3y \varepsilon^{2m} \psi \right) \psi' \\ &\quad + \varepsilon^2 (4\varphi + y\varphi') \psi - \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} y^2 \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2} \\ &= \overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 \left[-y^2 \varphi'' - 3y \varphi' - (2\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi) \right] \psi + \varepsilon^2 (2y\varphi + y^2 \varphi') \psi' \\ &\quad + \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} \left(\frac{1}{4} y^2 \psi' - 3y \psi \right) \psi' + \varepsilon^2 (4\varphi + y\varphi') \psi - \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} y^2 \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2} \\ &= \overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 \left[-y^2 \varphi'' - 2y \varphi' + 2\varphi - \varepsilon^{2m} \psi \right] \psi + \varepsilon^2 \left[2y \varphi + y^2 \varphi' \right] \psi' \\ &\quad + \left[\varepsilon^{2(m+1)} \frac{1}{4} y^2 \psi' - 3y \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} \psi \right] \psi' - \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} y^2 \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2} \\ &= \overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 \left[-y^2 \varphi'' - 2y \varphi' + 2\varphi \right] \psi - (\varepsilon^{2m} \psi) \psi + \varepsilon^2 \left[2y \varphi + y^2 \varphi' \right] \psi' \\ &\quad + \varepsilon^{2m} \left[\frac{1}{4} y^2 \psi' - 3y \psi \right] \psi' - \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} y^2 \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2} \\ &= \overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 G(y, \psi, \psi') - \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} y^2 \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2} \end{split}$$

where $G(y, \psi, \psi')$ is of the form

$$\beta_{0}(y)\psi + \gamma_{0}(y)\psi' + \varepsilon^{2m}\left[\beta_{1}(y)\psi + \gamma_{1}(y)\psi'\right]\psi' - \left(\varepsilon^{2m}\psi\right)\psi$$

The β 's and the γ 's are polynomials in y. In the following computations, it will be

convenient to use G to denote anything of the above form. We have

$$\Psi_1(\psi) = \overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 G(y, \psi, \psi') - \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} y^2 \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2}$$

and so

$$\begin{split} \psi &= \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1 \left[\Psi_1(\psi) \right](y) \\ &= \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1 \left[\overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 G(y, \psi, \psi') - \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} y^2 \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2} \right](y) \end{split}$$

and

$$\begin{split} S_1\left[\overline{f}(y) + \varepsilon^2 G(y,\psi,\psi') - \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} y^2 \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2}\right](y) \\ &= -\frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t,y)\right] \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} \left[\overline{f}(t) + \varepsilon^2 G(t,\psi,\psi') - \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} t^2 \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dt^2}\right] dt \\ &= -\frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t,y)\right] \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} \overline{f}(t) dt \\ &+ \varepsilon^2 \left(\frac{-1}{y^2}\right) \int_0^y \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t,y)\right] \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} G(t,\psi,\psi') dt \\ &+ \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} \frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t,y)\right] \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dy^2} dt \\ &= S_1 \left[\overline{f}(t)\right] + \varepsilon^2 S_1 \left[G(t,\psi,\psi')\right] + \varepsilon^{2(m+1)} \frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega\right] \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dt^2} dt \end{split}$$

 So

$$\psi = \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1 \left[\overline{f}(t) \right] + \varepsilon S_1 \left[G(t, \psi, \psi') \right] + \varepsilon^{2m+1} \frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega \right] \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} \psi \frac{d^2 \psi}{dt^2} dt$$

and by integrating the last term by parts we get

$$\frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y^2} \left[\left[\sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega\right] \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi(t)}} \psi \frac{d\psi}{dt} \right]_0^y - \int_0^y \frac{d\psi}{dt} \left(\cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega\right] \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \frac{t^2}{\varphi} \psi \right] \right] \\ + \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega\right] \frac{d}{dt} \left[\frac{t^3\psi}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \right] dt \right]$$

for the last term and simplifying yields

_

$$-\frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y^2}\int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)] \frac{d}{dt} \left[\frac{t^3\psi}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\right] \frac{d\psi}{dt} dt - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}}{y^2}\int_0^y \cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega(t,y)] \frac{t^2}{\varphi} \psi \frac{d\psi}{dt} dt$$

and we conclude

.

•

$$\begin{split} \psi &= \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1[\overline{f}] + \varepsilon S_1[G] - -\frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t,y)] \frac{d}{dt} \left[\frac{t^3 \psi}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \right] \frac{d\psi}{dt} dt \\ &- \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}}{y^2} \int_0^y \cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t,y)] \frac{t^2}{\varphi} \psi \frac{d\psi}{dt} dt \end{split}$$

Notice that

$$S_{2}\left[\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\psi\psi'\right] = -\frac{1}{y^{2}}\int_{0}^{y}\cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\psi\psi'dt$$
$$= -\frac{1}{y^{2}}\int_{0}^{y}\cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{t^{2}}{\varphi}\psi\psi'dt$$

and

.

$$S_{1}\left[\frac{t^{2}}{\varphi}\varphi'\psi\psi'\right] = -\frac{1}{y^{2}}\int_{0}^{y}\sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\frac{t^{2}}{\varphi}\varphi'\psi\psi'dt$$
$$= -\frac{1}{y^{2}}\int_{0}^{y}\sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{t^{3}}{\varphi\sqrt{\varphi}}\varphi'\psi\psi'dt$$

.

,

We also have that

$$\frac{d}{dt} \left[\frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \psi \right] = \frac{d}{dt} \left(\frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \right) \psi + \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \frac{d\psi}{dt}$$
$$= \frac{\sqrt{\varphi} 3t^2 - t^3 \frac{1}{2} \varphi^{-\frac{1}{2}} \varphi'}{\varphi} \psi + \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \frac{d\psi}{dt}$$
$$= \left(\frac{3t^2}{\sqrt{\varphi}} - \frac{t^3 \varphi'}{2\varphi \sqrt{\varphi}} \right) \psi + \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \frac{d\psi}{dt}$$

So the result for ψ is now

$$\begin{split} \psi &= \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1[\overline{f}] + \varepsilon S_1[G] - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{3t^2}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \psi \psi' dt \\ &+ \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{t^3 \varphi'}{2\varphi \sqrt{\varphi}} \psi \psi' dt - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \psi' \psi' dt \\ &+ \varepsilon^{2m} S_2[\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \psi \psi'] \end{split}$$

which means that

$$\begin{split} \psi &= \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1[\overline{f}] + \varepsilon S_1[G] - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{2} S_1 \left[\frac{t^2}{\varphi} \varphi' \psi \psi' \right] + \varepsilon^{2m} S_2 \left[\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \psi \psi' \right] \\ &- \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{3t^2}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \psi \psi' dt - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \psi' \psi' dt \\ &= \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1[\overline{f}] + \varepsilon S_1[G] - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{2} S_1 \left[\frac{t^2}{\varphi} \varphi' \psi \psi' \right] + \varepsilon^{2m} S_2 \left[\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \psi \psi' \right] \\ &- \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \left[3t \psi \psi' + t^2 \psi' \psi' \right] dt \\ &= \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1[\overline{f}] + \varepsilon S_1[G] - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{2} S_1 \left[\frac{t^2}{\varphi} \varphi' \psi \psi' \right] + \varepsilon^{2m} S_2 \left[\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \psi \psi' \right] \end{split}$$

.

.

since the term $-\frac{\varepsilon^{2m+1}}{y} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} [3t\psi\psi' + t^2\psi'\psi'] dt$ is of the form $S_1[G]$, of course with different polynomials $\beta_1(y)$ and $\gamma_1(y)$ then in the original G. Thus we have that

$$\psi = \psi_0 + \varepsilon S_1[G(t,\psi,\psi')] + \varepsilon^{2m} S_2[\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\psi\psi'] - \frac{1}{2}\varepsilon^{2m+1} S_1[\frac{t^2}{\varphi}\varphi'\psi\psi']$$
(4.13)

where

$$\psi_0 = \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1[\overline{f}]$$

Since \overline{f} is twice differentiable, we can use previous results to state that

$$\frac{1}{\varepsilon}S_1[\overline{f}] = \overline{f} + O(\varepsilon)$$

We need to keep the terms separate so that we may pursue the analysis as far as possible into values of y where $\varphi(y)$ become very small.

4.3.2 The problem for ψ'

We now turn our attention to equations 4.6 to 4.9. We want to remove the nonlinearity in the term with the second derivative of ψ' . We do this by multiplying the equations by the factor

$$\frac{\varphi}{\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}$$

and using the identity

$$\frac{\varphi}{\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}=1-\frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}$$

$$\begin{split} \frac{\varphi}{\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi} \left[\varepsilon^2 y^2 (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi) \frac{d^2\psi'}{dy^2} + \varepsilon^2 \left(5y(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi) + \frac{1}{2}y^2(\varphi' + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi') \right) \frac{d\psi'}{dy} + \psi' \right] \\ &= \frac{\varphi}{\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi} \left[\overline{f}'(y) + \varepsilon^2 g_2(y, \psi, \psi') \right] \\ \Rightarrow \varepsilon^2 y^2 \varphi \frac{d^2\psi'}{dy^2} + \left[\varepsilon^2 5y\varphi + \frac{\varepsilon^2}{2}y^2 \varphi \frac{\varphi' + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi'}{\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi} \right] \frac{d\psi'}{dy} + \frac{\psi'\varphi}{\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi} \\ &= \left(1 - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi} \right) (\overline{f}'(y) + \varepsilon^2 g_2) \end{split}$$

which yields

$$\varepsilon^{2}y^{2}\varphi\frac{d^{2}\psi'}{dy^{2}} + \varepsilon^{2}(5y\varphi + \frac{1}{2}y^{2}\varphi')\frac{d\psi'}{dy} + \psi' = \left(1 - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi}\right)(\overline{f}'(y) + \varepsilon^{2}g_{2})$$
$$+ \left[\varepsilon^{2}\frac{y^{2}}{2}\varphi'\left(\frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)}\right) - \varepsilon^{2}\frac{y^{2}}{2}\varepsilon^{2m}\psi' + \frac{\varepsilon^{2}y^{2}}{2}\frac{\varepsilon^{4m}\psi'\psi}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)}\right]\frac{d\psi'}{dy} + \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)}\psi'$$

and simplifying results in

$$\varepsilon^{2}y^{2}\varphi \frac{d^{2}\psi'}{dy^{2}} + \varepsilon^{2}(5y\varphi + \frac{1}{2}y^{2}\varphi')\frac{d\psi'}{dy} + \psi' = \left(1 - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi}\right)(\overline{f}'(y) + \varepsilon^{2}g_{2})$$
$$+ \varepsilon^{2m+2}\frac{1}{2}y^{2}(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)(\psi\varphi' - \psi'\varphi)\frac{d\psi'}{dy} + \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)}\psi'$$

So now we introduce Ψ_1 as defined by 4.11 and use the generic notation for G as done earlier. This then produces

$$\Psi_1(\psi') = -\varepsilon^2 (4\varphi + y\varphi')\psi' + \left(1 - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi}\right) (\overline{f}'(y) + \varepsilon^2 g_2)$$

So

$$+\varepsilon^{2m+2}\frac{1}{2}y^{2}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)(\psi\varphi'-\psi'\varphi)\frac{d\psi'}{dy} + \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}\psi'$$

$$= -4\varepsilon^{2}\varphi\psi'-\varepsilon^{2}y\varphi'\psi'+\overline{f}'(y)+\varepsilon^{2}g_{2} - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)}\overline{f}'(y) - \frac{\varepsilon^{2m+2}\psi}{(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)}g_{2}$$

$$+\varepsilon^{2m+2}\frac{1}{2}y^{2}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}(\psi\varphi'-\psi'\varphi)\frac{d\psi'}{dy} + \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}{\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}\psi'$$

$$= \overline{f}'(y)+\varepsilon^{2}\left[-4\varphi\psi'-y\varphi'\psi'+g_{2}\right]+\varepsilon^{2m}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)\psi\left[-\overline{f}'(y)-\varepsilon^{2}g_{2}+\psi'\right]$$

$$+\varepsilon^{2m+2}\frac{1}{2}y^{2}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\left[\varphi'\psi\frac{d\psi'}{dy} - \frac{1}{2}\varphi\frac{d}{dy}(\psi')^{2}\right]$$

$$= \overline{f}'(y)+\varepsilon^{2}G_{1}(y,\psi,\psi')+\varepsilon^{2m}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)(\psi)\left(G_{2}(y,\psi,\psi')-\varepsilon^{2}g_{2}\right)$$

$$+\varepsilon^{2m+2}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\frac{1}{4}y^{2}\left[2\varphi'\psi\frac{d\psi'}{dy} - \varphi\frac{d}{dy}(\psi')^{2}\right]$$

$$(4.14)$$

Notice that our definition for G does not allow us to write $G_2(y, \psi, \psi') - \varepsilon^2 g_2 = G_2$. We will solve this problem in the following section, for now we may just write out anything that does not fit explicitly. Inverting equation 4.14 we get

$$\psi' = -\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \left[\overline{f}'(y) + \varepsilon^2 G_1(y, \psi, \psi') + \varepsilon^{2m}(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)(\psi) \left(G_2(y, \psi, \psi') - \varepsilon^2 g_2 \right) + \varepsilon^{2m+2}(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1} \frac{1}{4} y^2 \left[2\varphi'\psi \frac{d\psi'}{dy} - \varphi \frac{d}{dy}(\psi')^2 \right] \right]$$

Consider the term

$$-\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\frac{1}{y^2}\int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\varepsilon^{2m+2}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\frac{1}{4}t^2\left[2\varphi'\psi\frac{d\psi'}{dt}-\varphi\frac{d}{dt}(\psi')^2\right]dt$$

$$= -\varepsilon^{2m+1} \frac{1}{y^2} \frac{1}{4} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1} \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} 2\varphi'\psi \frac{d\psi'}{dt} dt$$
$$+ \varepsilon^{2m+1} \frac{1}{y^2} \frac{1}{4} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1} \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \varphi \frac{d}{dt} (\psi')^2 dt \qquad (4.15)$$

Tackle the first integral by parts

٠

$$\begin{split} &-\varepsilon^{2m+1}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega](\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}}2\varphi'\psi\frac{d\psi'}{dt}dt\\ &=\varepsilon^{2m+1}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y\psi'\sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{1}{\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}2\frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}}(\varphi'\psi'+\varphi''\psi)dt\\ &+\varepsilon^{2m+1}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y\psi'\sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{1}{\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}\frac{6t^2\varphi-t^3\varphi'}{\varphi\sqrt{\varphi}}\varphi'\psi dt\\ &-\varepsilon^{2m+1}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y\psi'\sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{\varphi'+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi'}{(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^2}\frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}}2\varphi'\psi dt\\ &+\varepsilon^{2m}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y\psi'\cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{1}{\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi}\frac{t^2}{\varphi}2\varphi'\psi dt \end{split}$$

Now we do the second integral in 4.15 by parts to get

$$\begin{split} +\varepsilon^{2m+1}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega](\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\varphi\frac{d}{dt}(\psi')^2dt\\ &= -\varepsilon^{2m+1}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y(\psi')^2\sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{1}{(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)}\frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\varphi'dt\\ &- -\varepsilon^{2m+1}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y(\psi')^2\sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{1}{(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)}\left(3t^2\sqrt{\varphi}-\frac{t^3\varphi'}{2\sqrt{\varphi}}\right)dt\\ &+\varepsilon^{2m+1}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y(\psi')^2\sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{\varphi'+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi'}{(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^2}t^3\sqrt{\varphi}dt \end{split}$$

$$-\varepsilon^{2m}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y (\psi')^2 \cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega]\frac{1}{(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)}t^2 dt$$

,

Putting the two together we get

,

,

4

.

$$-\varepsilon^{2m} \frac{1}{y^2} \frac{1}{4} \int_0^y \cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{1}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)} \frac{t^2}{\varphi} \left[\varphi\psi' - 2\varphi'\psi\right] \psi' dt$$
$$+\varepsilon^{2m+1} \frac{1}{y^2} \frac{1}{4} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{\varphi' + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi'}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)} \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \left[\varphi\psi' - 2\varphi'\psi\right] \psi' dt$$
$$-\varepsilon^{2m+1} \frac{1}{y^2} \frac{1}{4} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{1}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)} \left[3\psi' t^2\sqrt{\varphi} - \frac{t^3\varphi'\psi'}{2\sqrt{\varphi}} - \frac{6t^2\varphi'\psi}{\sqrt{\varphi}} + \frac{t^3(\varphi')^2}{\varphi\sqrt{\varphi}}\psi\right] \psi' dt$$
$$-\varepsilon^{2m+1} \frac{1}{y^2} \frac{1}{4} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega] \frac{1}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi)} \frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \left[\psi'\varphi' - 2\varphi'\psi' - 2\varphi''\psi\right] \psi' dt$$

which can be written as

$$-\varepsilon^{2m}S_2\left[\frac{1}{4}\frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\left[2\varphi'\psi-\varphi\psi'\right]\psi'\right]$$
$$-\varepsilon^{2m+1}S_1\left[\frac{3}{4}t(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\left[2\varphi'\psi-\varphi\psi'\right]\psi'\right]$$
$$+\varepsilon^{2m+1}S_1\left[\frac{1}{8}\frac{t^2\varphi'}{\varphi}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\left[2\varphi'\psi-\varphi\psi'\right]\psi'\right]$$
$$+\varepsilon^{4m+1}S_1\left[\frac{1}{4}t^2(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-2}\left[2\varphi'\psi-\varphi\psi'\right](\psi')^2\right]$$
$$-\varepsilon^{2m+1}\frac{1}{y^2}\frac{1}{4}\int_0^y\sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\Omega](\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\frac{t^3}{\sqrt{\varphi}}\left[2\varphi'\varphi'\psi-\varphi\varphi'\psi'-\varphi'\psi'-2\varphi''\psi\right]\psi'dt$$

and we can write the last term as

$$+\varepsilon^{2m+1}S_1\left[\frac{t^2}{4}(\varphi+\varepsilon^{2m}\psi)^{-1}\left[2\psi\left((\varphi')^2-\varphi''\right)-\varphi'\psi'\left(\varphi+1\right)\right]\psi'\right]$$

All that we are interested in is the structure of the equations, and so we extend the definition for the generic G. By doing so, we will also solve the earlier problem of certain terms not fitting with the old definition for G.

Define
$$\widetilde{G}(y,\psi,\psi') = \sum_{l+q=1}^{l+q=3} P_{l,q}(y)(\psi)^l(\psi')^q$$

where $P_{l,q}(y)$ are polynomials in y which depend on ε in a regular way. We can invert fully the equation 4.14 to get

$$\psi' = \psi'_0 + \varepsilon S_1 \left[\tilde{G}_1(t, \psi, \psi') \right]$$
$$+ \varepsilon^{2m-1} S_1 \left[(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi)^{-1} \tilde{G}_2(t, \psi, \psi') \right]$$
$$+ \varepsilon^{2m} S_2 \left[\varphi^{-\frac{1}{2}} (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi)^{-1} \tilde{G}_3(t, \psi, \psi') \right]$$
$$+ \varepsilon^{2m+1} S_1 \left[\varphi^{-1} (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi)^{-1} \tilde{G}_4(t, \psi, \psi') \right]$$
$$+ \varepsilon^{4m+1} S_1 \left[(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} \psi)^{-2} \tilde{G}_5(t, \psi, \psi') \right]$$
(4.16)

where $\psi'_0 = \frac{1}{\varepsilon} S_1 \left[\overline{f}' \right] = \overline{f}' + O(\varepsilon).$

4.4 The Contraction Mapping

We can write our results as follows

$$\psi = \psi_0 + \varepsilon S_1 \left[P_1(t, \psi, \psi') \right] + \varepsilon S_2 \left[P_2(t, \psi, \psi') \right]$$
(4.17)

$$\psi' = \psi'_0 + \varepsilon S_1 \left[\tilde{P}_1(t, \psi, \psi') \right] + \varepsilon S_2 \left[\tilde{P}_2(t, \psi, \psi') \right]$$
(4.18)

where $P_{1,2}$ and $\tilde{P}_{1,2}$ are explicitly given in 4.13 and 4.16. Let Λ be the closed interval $[0, y_0]$ and consider pairs of continuous functions $f, g \in C(\Lambda)$. We define a mapping T with components $T^{(1)}$ and $T^{(2)}$ by the formulas

$$T^{(1)}(f,g) = \psi_0 + \varepsilon S_1 \left[P_1(t,f,g) \right] + \varepsilon S_2 \left[P_2(t,f,g) \right]$$
$$T^{(2)}(f,g) = \psi'_0 + \varepsilon S_1 \left[\tilde{P}_1(t,f,g) \right] + \varepsilon S_2 \left[\tilde{P}_2(t,f,g) \right]$$

The operators S_1 and S_2 map continuous functions into continuous functions, so we must check that $P_{1,2}(t, f, g)$ and $\tilde{P}_{1,2}(t, f, g)$ are continuous functions. By inspection, we see that $(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi) \neq 0$ thus $|\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m}\psi|$ must be positive, and for this we must restrict the interval Λ such that $\varphi(y) \geq c\varepsilon^{2m-1}$, c > 0 for $y \in \Lambda$.

Consider T as an operator in the Banach space of continuous functions (f,g) with the usual norm

$$\sup_{\Lambda} |f| + \sup_{\Lambda} |g|$$

In this space, we consider the ball B_{ε} which are centered at the pair ψ_0, ψ'_0 and has a radius of $\varepsilon^{1-\mu}$ with μ positive and arbitrarily small. We want T to map the ball into itself. We have the estimate

$$|S_{1,2}[R]| \le c \sup |R|$$

and so we must have that $P_{1,2}(t, f, g) = O(1)$ and $\tilde{P}_{1,2}(t, f, g) = O(1)$. Analysis of the terms in 4.16 will give us a more severe restriction on the interval Λ .

$$\varphi(y) \ge c\varepsilon^m, \ c > 0, \text{ for } y \in \Lambda$$

$$(4.19)$$

with the side condition that $m \ge 2$. We can now show that T is indeed a contraction mapping in B_{ε} . This means that for (f_1, g_1) and $(f_2, g_2) \in B_{\varepsilon}$ we have

$$\left|T^{(1,2)}(f_1,g_1) - T^{(1,2)}(f_2,g_2)\right| \le \varepsilon C \left\{ \sup |f_1 - f_2| + \sup |g_1 - g_2| \right\}$$

with C independent of ε . So we consider a representative term of 4.16

$$\begin{split} \varepsilon \left| \varepsilon^{2m} S_1 \left[\varphi^{-1} (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_1)^{-1} \widetilde{G}(t, f_1, g_1) - \varphi^{-1} (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_2)^{-1} \widetilde{G}(t, f_2, g_2) \right] \right| \\ = \varepsilon \left| -\frac{\varepsilon^{2m}}{y^2} \int_0^y \sin[\frac{1}{\varepsilon} \Omega(t, y)] \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \left[\frac{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_1)^{-1}}{\varphi} \widetilde{G}(t, f_1, g_1) - \frac{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_2)^{-1}}{\varphi} \widetilde{G}(t, f_2, g_2) \right] \right| dt \\ & \leq \varepsilon \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}}{y^2} \int_0^y \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \frac{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_1)^{-1}}{\varphi} \left| \widetilde{G}(t, f_1, g_1) - \widetilde{G}(t, f_2, g_2) \right| dt \\ & + \varepsilon \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}}{y^2} \int_0^y \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} \frac{1}{\varphi} \left| \widetilde{G}(t, f_2, g_2) \right| \left| \frac{1}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_2)} - \frac{1}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_1)} \right| dt \end{split}$$

In the first term, $\tilde{G}(t, f, g)$ is Lipschitz continuous with respect to f and g. So this term is majorized by

$$\varepsilon \frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} dt \cdot \sup \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_1)\varphi} \cdot C\left\{ \sup |f_1 - f_2| + \sup |g_1 - g_2| \right\}$$

Now we also have that

$$\sup \frac{\varepsilon^{2m}}{(\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_1)} \cdot \frac{1}{\varphi} = O(1)$$

so that the term is then majorized by

$$\varepsilon C \left\{ \sup |f_1 - f_2| + \sup |g_1 - g_2| \right\}$$

with C a constant independent of ε : We have that the second term is majorized by

$$\varepsilon \frac{1}{y^2} \int_0^y \frac{t}{\sqrt{\varphi}} dt \cdot \sup \frac{\varepsilon^{4m}}{\varphi} (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_1)^{-1} (\varphi + \varepsilon^{2m} f_2)^{-1} \cdot \sup |f_1 - f_2|$$

With the condition 4.19 we have a much stronger contraction, the term is majorized by

$$\varepsilon^{1+m} \cdot C \cdot \sup |f_1 - f_2|$$

with C independent of ε .

Now that we have proved the contraction property of the mapping T we have proved that there exists a unique solution $\psi(y), \psi'(y)$ of 4.17 and 4.18 in an interval Λ limited by the condition 4.19 and that

$$\psi = \psi_0 + O(\varepsilon)$$

 $\psi' = \psi'_0 + O(\varepsilon)$

which concludes the proof.

,

Bibliography

- Amick, C. J. & Kirchgässner, K. "A Theory of Solitary Water-Waves in the Presence of Surface Tension", Arch. Rat. Mech. & Analysis (1989).
- [2] Arrowsmith, D. K. & Place C. M. "An Introduction to Dynamical Systems", Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 1990.
- [3] Bender, C. M. & Orszag, S. A. "Advanced Mathematical Methods for Scientists and Engineers", McGraw-Hill Inc., 1978.
- [4] Crowder, H. K. & McCuskey, S. W. "Topics in Higher Analysis", Macmillan Company, New York, 1964.
- [5] Eckhaus, W. "Singular Perturbations of Homoclinic Orbits in R⁴", Preprint, Mathematical Inst. Utrecht.
- [6] Greenleaf, F. P. "Introduction to Complex Variables", W. B. Saunders Company, 1972.
- [7] Hammersley, J. M. & Mazzarino, G. "Computational Aspects of some Autonomous Differential Equations", Proc. R. Soc. London A 424 (1989).
- [8] Holmes, P., Marsden, J. & Scheurle, J. "Exponentially Small Splittings of Separatrices with Applications to KAM Theory and Degenerate Bifurcations", Contemporary Mathematics 81, (1988).
- [9] Kummer, M., Ellison, J. & Sáenz, A. W. "Exponentially Small Phenomena in the Rapidly Forced Pendulum", Asymptotics Beyond All Orders, Plenum Press,
New York, 1991.

- [10] Markushevich, A. I. "Theory of Functions of a Complex Variable", Chelsea Publishing Company, New York, N. Y., 1965.
- [11] Martin, R. H. Jr. "Nonlinear Operators and Differential Equations in Banach Spaces", John Wiley and Sons, 1976.
- [12] Potter, M. C. & Goldberg, J. "Mathematical Methods", Prentice-Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, 1978.
- [13] Scheurle, J., Marsden, J. E. & Holmes, P. "Exponentially Small Estimates for Separatrix Splittings", Asymptotics Beyond All Orders, Plenum Press, New York, 1991.
- [14] Segur, H. et al. "Asymptotics Beyond All Orders", Plenum Press, New York, 1991.
- [15] Whittaker, E. T. & Watson, G. N. "A Course of Modern Analysis", Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 1927.
- [16] Wylie, C. R. "Differential Equations", McGraw-Hill Inc., 1979.

Appendix A

Computation of Some Integrals

In this appendix, we will evaluate two integrals which occur in the analysis. The outline for this work was given by Dr. Nico Temme, C.W.I. Amsterdam. We are looking at

$$\left(\frac{dy}{dx}\right)_{\pm} = \pm \sqrt{z(y)}$$

We replace z(y) by its asymptotic approximation and so we have for $y^m(x), x < 0$.

$$\frac{dy^{(m)}}{dx} = \sqrt{\Phi_m(y;\varepsilon)}$$
$$\Phi_m = \sum_{n=0}^{m-1} \varepsilon^{2n} z_n$$

For m = 1

$$\Phi_1 = z_0 = \left(y^{(1)}\right)^2 \left(1 - \frac{2}{3}y^{(1)}\right)$$

and so

$$\frac{dy^{(1)}}{dx} = \sqrt{(y^{(1)})^2 - \frac{2}{3} (y^{(1)})^3}$$

For m = 2 we have

$$\Phi_2 = z_0 + \varepsilon^2 z_1$$

$$= \left(y^{(2)}\right)^{2} \left(1 - \frac{2}{3}y^{(2)}\right) + \varepsilon^{2} \left(-z_{0}\frac{d^{2}z_{0}}{dy^{2}} + \frac{1}{4}\left(\frac{dz_{0}}{dy}\right)^{2}\right)$$

$$= \left(y^{(2)}\right)^{2} - \frac{2}{3}\left(y^{(2)}\right)^{3} - \varepsilon^{2} \left[\left(y^{(2)}\right)^{2} - \frac{2}{3}\left(y^{(2)}\right)^{3}\right] \left[2 - 4y^{(2)}\right] + \frac{\varepsilon^{2}}{4} \left[2y^{(2)} - 2\left(y^{(2)}\right)^{2}\right]^{2}$$

$$= \left(y^{(2)}\right)^{2} \left(1 - \varepsilon^{2}\right) + \left(y^{(2)}\right)^{3} \left(-\frac{2}{3} + 4\varepsilon^{2} + \frac{4}{3}\varepsilon^{2} - 2\varepsilon^{2}\right) + \left(y^{(2)}\right)^{4} \left(-\frac{5}{3}\varepsilon^{2}\right)$$

$$= \left(y^{(2)}\right)^{2} \left(1 - \varepsilon^{2}\right) + \left(y^{(2)}\right)^{3} \left(-\frac{2}{3} + \frac{10}{3}\varepsilon^{2}\right) + \left(y^{(2)}\right)^{4} \left(-\frac{5}{3}\varepsilon^{2}\right)$$

We wish to calculate

$$I^{(m)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right] \left[y^{(m)}(\xi) - \left(y^{(m)}(\xi)\right)^2\right] d\xi$$

.

for m = 1 and m = 2. As

$$\left(\frac{dy^{(1)}}{dx}\right)^2 = \left(y^{(1)}\right)^2 - \frac{2}{3}\left(y^{(1)}\right)^3$$

so we need to integrate

$$\int \frac{1}{y^{(1)}(1-\frac{2}{3}y^{(1)})^{\frac{1}{2}}} dy$$
$$= -\ln \left| \frac{1+\sqrt{1-\frac{2}{3}y^{(1)}}}{1-\sqrt{1-\frac{2}{3}y^{(1)}}} \right|$$

and so we have

.

$$x = -\ln\left|\frac{1+\sqrt{1-\frac{2}{3}y^{(1)}}}{1-\sqrt{1-\frac{2}{3}y^{(1)}}}\right|$$

Solving for $y^{(1)}$ yields

$$\frac{2}{3}y^{(1)} = \frac{4\varepsilon^x}{\varepsilon^{2x} + 2\varepsilon^x + 1}$$

Thus

$$y^{(1)} = \frac{3}{2}\operatorname{sech}^2(\frac{1}{2}x) = \frac{3}{\cosh[x] + 1}$$

and so

$$I^{(1)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi] \frac{d^2 y^{(1)}}{d\xi^2} d\xi$$

which we integrate by parts to get

$$I^{(1)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \left(\left[\cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right] \frac{dy^{(1)}}{d\xi} \right]_{-\infty}^0 + \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \int_{-\infty}^0 \frac{dy^{(1)}}{d\xi} \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right] d\xi \right)$$
$$= \frac{1}{\varepsilon^3} \int_{-\infty}^0 \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right] \frac{dy^{(1)}}{d\xi} d\xi$$

Integrating by parts once again will yield

$$I^{(1)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^3} \left(\left[y^{(1)} \sin\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right] \right]_{-\infty}^0 - \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right] y^{(1)} d\xi \right)$$
$$= -\frac{1}{\varepsilon^4} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right] y^{(1)} d\xi$$

now recall that

$$\cos(y) = \frac{e^{iy} + e^{-iy}}{2}$$

so

$$\cos(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi) = \frac{e^{\frac{i\xi}{\varepsilon}} + e^{-\frac{i\xi}{\varepsilon}}}{2}$$

and thus

$$-\frac{1}{\varepsilon^4} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos\left[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi\right] y^{(1)} d\xi = -\frac{1}{2\varepsilon^4} \int_{-\infty}^0 \left(e^{\frac{i\xi}{\varepsilon}} + e^{-\frac{i\xi}{\varepsilon}}\right) y^{(1)} d\xi$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2\epsilon^4} \left[\int_{-\infty}^0 e^{\frac{i\xi}{\epsilon}} y^{(1)} d\xi + \int_{-\infty}^0 e^{-\frac{i\xi}{\epsilon}} y^{(1)} d\xi \right]$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2\epsilon^4} \left[\int_{-\infty}^0 e^{\frac{i\xi}{\epsilon}} y^{(1)}(\xi) d\xi - \int_{\infty}^0 e^{-\frac{i\xi}{\epsilon}} y^{(1)}(-\xi) d\xi \right]$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2\epsilon^4} \left[\int_{-\infty}^0 e^{\frac{i\xi}{\epsilon}} y^{(1)}(\xi) d\xi + \int_0^\infty e^{-\frac{i\xi}{\epsilon}} y^{(1)}(\xi) d\xi \right]$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2\epsilon^4} \int_{-\infty}^\infty e^{\frac{i\xi}{\epsilon}} y^{(1)}(\xi) d\xi$$

Now, set

$$\xi = \ln(u) \text{ so } d\xi = \frac{1}{u} du$$

$$I^{(1)}(\varepsilon) = -\frac{1}{2\varepsilon^4} \int_0^\infty e^{\frac{\ln(u)i}{\varepsilon}} y^{(1)} \ln(u) \frac{1}{u} du$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2\varepsilon^4} \int_0^\infty u^{\frac{i}{\varepsilon}} \frac{6u}{(u+1)^2} \frac{1}{u} du$$

$$= -\frac{3}{\varepsilon^4} \int_0^\infty \frac{u^{\frac{i}{\varepsilon}}}{(u+1)^2} du$$

now we substitute

$$u = \frac{t}{(1-t)}$$
 so $du = \frac{1}{(1-t)^2} dt$

to get

$$-\frac{3}{\varepsilon^4} \int_0^1 \frac{\left(\frac{t}{1-t}\right)^{\frac{i}{\epsilon}}}{(1-t)^2} \frac{1}{(1-t)^2} dt$$

$$= -\frac{3}{\varepsilon^4} \int_0^1 \left(\frac{t}{1-t}\right)^{\frac{i}{\epsilon}} dt$$

$$= -\frac{3}{\varepsilon^4} \int_0^1 t^{\frac{i}{\epsilon}} (1-t)^{\frac{-i}{\epsilon}} dt$$

$$= -\frac{3}{\varepsilon^4} \int_0^1 t^{(\frac{i}{\epsilon}+1)-1} (1-t)^{(1-\frac{i}{\epsilon})-1} dt$$
(A.1)

.

notice that the above equation is in the form of a Beta function and recall the formula

$$\Gamma(x)\Gamma(y) = B(x,y)\Gamma(x+y)$$

where

$$B(x,y) = \int_0^1 t^{x-1} (1-t)^{y-1} dt$$

so that we get for A.1

$$\frac{\left(-\frac{3}{\varepsilon^{4}}\right)\Gamma(\frac{i}{\varepsilon}+1)\Gamma(1-\frac{i}{\varepsilon})}{\Gamma(\frac{i}{\varepsilon}+1+1-\frac{i}{\varepsilon})} = \frac{\left(-3\right)\Gamma(\frac{i}{\varepsilon}+1)\Gamma(1-\frac{i}{\varepsilon})}{\varepsilon^{4}\Gamma(2)} \tag{A.2}$$

Now we also recall that

$$\Gamma(z)\Gamma(1-z) = \frac{\pi}{\sin(\pi z)}$$

thus

$$z\left(\Gamma(z)\Gamma(1-z)
ight)=rac{\pi z}{\sin(\pi z)}$$

and so

$$\Gamma(z+1)\Gamma(1-z) = rac{\pi z}{\sin(\pi z)}$$

so A.2 becomes

$$I^{(1)}(\varepsilon) = \left(-\frac{3}{\varepsilon^4}\right) \frac{\pi(\frac{i}{\varepsilon})}{\sin(\frac{i\pi}{\varepsilon})} = -\frac{3\pi i}{\varepsilon^5 i \sinh(\frac{\pi}{\varepsilon})} = -\frac{3\pi}{\varepsilon^5 \sinh(\frac{\pi}{\varepsilon})}$$
(A.3)

Now we wish to deal with the second integral so we start by considering

$$\frac{dy^{(2)}}{dx} = \sqrt{(y^{(2)})^2 (1 - \varepsilon^2) + (y^{(2)})^3 (-\frac{2}{3} + \frac{10}{3}\varepsilon^2) + (y^{(2)})^4 (-\frac{5}{3}\varepsilon^2)}$$
$$= y^{(2)}\sqrt{(1 - \varepsilon^2) + y^{(2)}(-\frac{2}{3} + \frac{10}{3}\varepsilon^2) + (y^{(2)})^2 (-\frac{5}{3}\varepsilon^2)}$$

To help simplify the notation, we will drop the superscript (2) on the y and just use y where it will not be confusing. We must integrate

$$\int \frac{dy}{y\sqrt[4]{(1-\varepsilon^2)+y(-\frac{2}{3}+\frac{10}{3}\varepsilon^2)+y^2(-\frac{5}{3}\varepsilon^2)}}$$

by making the substitution $y = \frac{1}{u}$ we get

$$\int \frac{-du}{\sqrt{(1-\varepsilon^2)u^2 + (-\frac{2}{3} + \frac{10}{3}\varepsilon^2)u + (-\frac{5}{3}\varepsilon^2)}}$$

So evaluation of this integral yields

.

$$y^{(2)} = \frac{2(1-\varepsilon^2)}{\cosh\left(x\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}\right) \left[\frac{4}{9}\left(10\varepsilon^4 + 5\varepsilon^2 + 1\right)\right]^{\frac{1}{2}} - \left(\frac{10\varepsilon^2 - 2}{3}\right)}$$
$$= \frac{6(1-\varepsilon^2)}{\cosh\left(x\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}\right) 2\left(10\varepsilon^4 + 5\varepsilon^2 + 1\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} - \left(10\varepsilon^2 - 2\right)}$$
$$= \frac{3(1-\varepsilon^2)}{\cosh\left(x\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}\right) (10\varepsilon^4 + 5\varepsilon^2 + 1)^{\frac{1}{2}} - (5\varepsilon^2 - 1)}$$
$$= \frac{3\lambda(1-\varepsilon^2)}{\cosh\left(x\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}\right) + \lambda(1-5\varepsilon^2)}$$

.

•

¥

.

where

$$\lambda = \frac{1}{\sqrt{10\varepsilon^4 + 5\varepsilon^2 + 1}}$$

To solve

$$I^{(2)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\dot{\varepsilon}^2} \int_{-\infty}^0 \cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi] y^{(2)}(\xi) \left[1 - y^{(2)}(\xi)\right] d\xi$$

we have to look at integrals of the type

$$J_k(a,\gamma) = \int_0^\infty \frac{\cos(ax)}{\left(\cosh(x) + \cos(\gamma)\right)^k} dx, \text{ for } a \in \mathbf{C}, |Im \ a| < k, \gamma \in (-\pi,\pi), k = 1, 2$$
(A.4)

We also have that

$$\cos(ax) = \frac{e^{iax} + e^{-iax}}{2}$$

for any complex number a. Thus

$$J_k(a,\gamma) = \frac{1}{2} \int_0^\infty \frac{e^{iax} + e^{-iax}}{\left(\cosh(x) + \cos(\gamma)\right)^k} dx$$
$$= \frac{1}{2} \int_{-\infty}^\infty \frac{e^{iax}}{\left(\cosh(x) + \cos(\gamma)\right)^k} dx$$

Let k = 1 and consider

$$\frac{1}{2}\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}\frac{e^{iax}}{\cosh(x)+\cos(\gamma)}dx$$

substitute $x = \ln(t)$ to get

$$\frac{1}{2} \int_0^\infty \frac{1}{t} \frac{t^{ia}}{\left(\frac{t+t-1}{2}\right) + \left(\frac{e^{i\gamma}+e^{-i\gamma}}{2}\right)} dt$$

$$\begin{split} &= \int_0^\infty \frac{1}{t} \frac{t^{ia}}{t+t^{-1}+e^{i\gamma}+e^{-i\gamma}} dt \\ &= \int_0^\infty \frac{t^{ia}}{t^2+te^{i\gamma}+te^{-i\gamma}+1} dt \\ &= \int_0^\infty \frac{t^{ia}}{(t+e^{i\gamma})(t+e^{-i\gamma})} dt \\ &= \int_0^\infty \frac{t^{ia}(e^{i\gamma}-e^{-i\gamma})}{(e^{i\gamma}-e^{-i\gamma})(t+e^{i\gamma})(t+e^{-i\gamma})} dt \\ &= \int_0^\infty \frac{e^{i\gamma}t^{ia}+t^{ia-1}-t^{ia}e^{-i\gamma}-t^{ia-1}}{(e^{i\gamma}-e^{-i\gamma})(t+e^{i\gamma})(t-e^{-i\gamma})} dt \\ &= \int_0^\infty \frac{t^{ia-1}e^{i\gamma}(t+e^{-i\gamma})-e^{-i\gamma}t^{ia-1}(t+e^{i\gamma})}{(e^{i\gamma}-e^{-i\gamma})(t+e^{i\gamma})(t-e^{-i\gamma})} dt \\ &= \frac{e^{i\gamma}}{e^{i\gamma}-e^{-i\gamma}} \int_0^\infty \frac{t^{ia-1}}{t+e^{i\gamma}} dt - \frac{e^{-i\gamma}}{e^{i\gamma}-e^{-i\gamma}} \int_0^\infty \frac{t^{ia-1}}{t+e^{-i\gamma}} dt \\ &= \frac{e^{i\gamma}}{2i\sin(\gamma)} \int_0^\infty \frac{t^{ia-1}}{t+e^{i\gamma}} dt - \frac{e^{-i\gamma}}{2i\sin(\gamma)} \int_0^\infty \frac{t^{ia-1}}{t+e^{-i\gamma}} dt \end{split}$$

When a is real, two divergent integrals appear, so to ensure convergence we will temporarily assume that $-1 < Im \ a < 0$. Now set $t = se^{i\gamma}$, $t = se^{-i\gamma}$ respectively, so that we can get

$$\frac{1}{2i\sin(\gamma)} \left[\int_0^\infty \frac{(se^{-i\gamma})^{ia}}{se^{-i\gamma} + e^{-i\gamma}} e^{-i\gamma} ds - \int_0^\infty \frac{(se^{-i\gamma})^{ia}}{se^{i\gamma} + e^{i\gamma}} e^{i\gamma} ds \right]$$
$$= \frac{e^{a\gamma} - e^{-a\gamma}}{2i\sin(\gamma)} \int_0^\infty \frac{s^{ia}}{s+1} ds \tag{A.5}$$

Consider

.

$$\int_0^\infty \frac{s^{ia}}{s+1} ds$$

72

with the substitution

 $s = \frac{w}{1-w}$

to get

$$\int_0^1 \frac{w^{ia}}{(1-w)^{ia}(1-w)^{-1}(1-w)^2} dw$$
$$= \int_0^1 \frac{w^{ia}}{(1-w)^{ia+1}} dw$$
$$= \int_0^1 w^{(ia+1)-1}(1-w)^{-ia-1} dw$$

and since this is a Beta function, we get

$$\frac{\Gamma(ia+1)\Gamma(-ia)}{\Gamma(1)} = \Gamma(-ia)\Gamma(1-(-ia)) = \frac{\pi}{\sin(-\pi ia)}$$

so that A.5 becomes

$$\frac{e^{a\gamma} - e^{-a\gamma}}{2i\sin(\gamma)} \frac{\pi}{-\sin(\pi i a)}$$
$$= -\frac{2\sinh(a\gamma)\pi}{\sin(\gamma)2i^2\sinh(\pi a)} = \frac{\pi\sinh(a\gamma)}{\sin(\gamma)\sinh(\pi a)}$$

so that

$$J_1(a,\gamma) = \frac{\pi \sinh(a\gamma)}{\sin(\gamma)\sinh(\pi a)}$$
(A.6)

The above equation was derived under the condition $-1 < Im \ a < 0$, however, both this final expression and the integral representation given in A.4 are analytic functions of a in the strip $|Im \ a| < 1$, and so we can conclude that A.6 also holds in this strip. Thus it is true for real values of a.

Now we wish to evaluate $J_2(a, \gamma)$, this can be accomplished by differentiating

 $J_1(a,\gamma)$ with respect to γ . We notice that

$$rac{\partial}{\partial \gamma} J_1(a,\gamma) = \sin(\gamma) J_2(a,\gamma)$$

so that

$$J_2(a,\gamma) = \frac{1}{\sin(\gamma)} \frac{\partial}{\partial \gamma} J_1(a,\gamma)$$

and

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial \gamma} J_1(a,\gamma) = \frac{\partial}{\partial \gamma} \frac{\pi \sinh(a\gamma)}{\sin(\gamma) \sinh(\pi a)}$$
$$= \frac{\pi a \cosh(a\gamma)}{\sin(\gamma) \sinh(\pi a)} - \frac{\pi \sinh(a\gamma) \cos(\gamma)}{\sin^2(\gamma) \sinh(\pi a)}$$
$$= \frac{\pi}{\sin^2(\gamma) \sinh(\pi a)} (a \cosh(a\gamma) \sin(\gamma) - \sinh(a\gamma) \cos(\gamma))$$

and so

$$J_2(a,\gamma) = \frac{\pi}{\sin^3(\gamma)\sinh(\pi a)} \left(a\cosh(a\gamma)\sin(\gamma) - \sinh(a\gamma)\cos(\gamma)\right)$$

We can return to the evaluation of $I^{(2)}(\varepsilon)$

$$I^{(2)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \int_0^{-\infty} \cos[\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\xi] y^{(2)}(\xi) \left[1 - y^{(2)}(\xi)\right] d\xi$$

where

$$y^{(2)}(x) = rac{3\lambda(1-\varepsilon^2)}{\cosh\left(x\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}
ight) + \lambda(1-5\varepsilon^2)}$$

with

٠

$$\lambda = \frac{1}{\sqrt{1 + 5\varepsilon^2 + 10\varepsilon^4}}$$

We set

$$a = \frac{1}{\varepsilon\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}}, \cos(\gamma) = \lambda(1-5\varepsilon^2)$$

and consider

$$\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} 3\lambda \sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2} \left[J_1(a,\gamma) - 3\lambda (1-\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} 3\lambda (1-\varepsilon^2) J_2(a,\gamma) \right]$$

to get

$$\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} 3\lambda \sqrt{1 - \varepsilon^2} \left[\int_0^\infty \frac{\cos \frac{x}{\varepsilon \sqrt{1 - \varepsilon^2}}}{\cosh(x) + \lambda (1 - 5\varepsilon^2)} dx - 3\lambda (1 - \varepsilon^2) \int_0^\infty \frac{\cos \frac{x}{\varepsilon \sqrt{1 - \varepsilon^2}}}{(\cosh(x) + \lambda (1 - 5\varepsilon^2))^2} dx \right]$$

Let

$$\frac{x}{\varepsilon\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}} = \frac{\xi}{\varepsilon}$$

to get

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} 3\lambda\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2} \left[\int_0^\infty \frac{\cos(\frac{\xi}{\varepsilon})\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}}{\cosh(\xi\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}) + \lambda(1-5\varepsilon^2)} d\xi \\ &- 3\lambda(1-\varepsilon^2) \int_0^\infty \frac{\cos(\frac{\xi}{\varepsilon})\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}}{\left(\cosh(\xi\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2}) + \lambda(1-5\varepsilon^2)\right)^2} d\xi \right] \\ &= \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} 3\lambda\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2} \int_0^\infty \frac{\cos(\frac{\xi}{\varepsilon})\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2} \left(\cosh(\xi\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2} + \lambda(1-5\varepsilon^2-3\lambda(1-\varepsilon^2))\right)}{\left(\cosh(\xi\sqrt{1-\varepsilon^2} + \lambda(1-5\varepsilon^2)\right)^2} d\xi \end{aligned}$$

and so after substituting $-\xi = \xi$ we get the above equation equal to $I^{(2)}(\varepsilon)$. Thus

$$I^{(2)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} 3\lambda \sqrt{1 - \varepsilon^2} \left[J_1(a, \gamma) - 3\lambda(1 - \varepsilon^2) J_2(a, \gamma) \right]$$

 γ is positive since $\cos(\gamma)$ is positive and γ tends to zero as $\varepsilon \to 0$. Moreover, we

have

$$\sin(\gamma) = \frac{\varepsilon \sqrt{15(1-\varepsilon^2)}}{\sqrt{1-5\varepsilon^2+10\varepsilon^4}} = \lambda \varepsilon \sqrt{15(1-\varepsilon^2)}$$

It then follows that

$$I^{(2)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} 3\lambda \sqrt{1 - \varepsilon^2} \left[\frac{\pi \sinh(a\gamma)}{\sin(\gamma)\sinh(\pi a)} - \frac{3\lambda(1 - \varepsilon^2)\pi}{\sin^3(\gamma)\sinh(\pi a)} (a\cosh(a\gamma)\sin(\gamma) - \sinh(a\gamma)\cos(\gamma)) \right]$$
$$= \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \frac{9\lambda^2\pi(1 - \varepsilon^2)^{\frac{3}{2}}}{\sin^3(\gamma)\sinh(\pi a)} \left(\sinh(a\gamma)5\varepsilon^2\lambda + \sinh(a\gamma)\lambda(1 - 5\varepsilon^2) - a\cosh(a\gamma)\sin(\gamma)\right)$$
$$= \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \frac{9\lambda^2\pi(1 - \varepsilon^2)^{\frac{3}{2}}}{\sin^3(\gamma)\sinh(\pi a)} (\lambda\sinh(a\gamma) - a\cosh(a\gamma)\sin(\gamma))$$

Now we compare this result with A.3. Intuitively we would expect $I^{(1)} \sim I^{(2)}$ as $\varepsilon \to 0$ but this actually turns out to be false. Letting $\varepsilon \to 0$ and hence $\gamma \to 0$ we have

$$\frac{\lambda \sinh(a\gamma) - a \cosh(a\gamma) \sin(\gamma)}{\sin^3(\gamma)} \sim -\frac{1}{3}a^3 + \frac{1}{6}a$$

and substituting this value back into $I^{(2)}(\varepsilon)$ we get

$$I^{(2)}(\varepsilon) \sim -\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \frac{3a^3\pi (1-\frac{1}{2}a^{-2})}{\sinh(\pi a)}$$

which does resemble A.3 if $a = \frac{1}{\varepsilon}$, but this would not be allowed in the limit, instead we consider the true value of a, which is $a = \frac{\lambda\sqrt{15}}{\sin(\gamma)}$ to get

$$I^{(2)}(\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon^2} \frac{9\lambda^2 \pi (1 - \varepsilon^2)^{\frac{3}{2}}}{\sin^3(\gamma) \sinh(\pi a)} \left[\lambda \sinh(a\gamma) - \lambda \sqrt{15} \cosh(a\gamma)\right]$$

$$=\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2}\frac{9\lambda^2\pi(1-\varepsilon^2)^{\frac{3}{2}}}{\sin^3(\gamma)\sinh(\pi a)}\left[\sinh(a\gamma)-\sqrt{15}\cosh(a\gamma)\right]$$

So now as $\varepsilon \to 0$ we have $a\sin(\gamma) \to a\gamma$ and $a\sin(\gamma) = \lambda\sqrt{15} \to \sqrt{15}$ and so $a\gamma \to \sqrt{15}$. Now when we consider the limit of the ratio $\frac{I^{(2)}}{I^{(1)}}$ we get

$$\lim_{\varepsilon \to 0} \frac{I^{(2)}(\varepsilon)}{I^{(1)}(\varepsilon)} = \frac{3\left[\sinh(\sqrt{15}) - \sqrt{15}\cosh(\sqrt{15})\right]}{15\sqrt{15}}$$
$$\sim \frac{24 - \sqrt{15} \cdot 24}{5\sqrt{15}} \sim -3.6$$